
Notice of Meeting 

 
 

 
   

 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Thursday, 24 September 2020 at 10.00 am 
Virtual Meeting 

 
Please note that due to guidelines imposed on social distancing by the 

Government the meeting will be held virtually. 
 

If you wish to view proceedings please click on this Live Stream Link 
 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting 

 
Membership 
 

Chairman - Councillor Arash Fatemian 
Deputy Chairman - City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers 
 

Councillors: Mark Cherry 

Mike Fox-Davies 

Hilary Hibbert-Biles 

Jeannette Matelot 

Laura Price 

Alison Rooke 

District 
Councillors: 

Paul Barrow 

Jill Bull 

Kieron Mallon David Bretherton 

Co-optees: Jean Bradlow Dr Alan Cohen Barbara Shaw 
 

Notes: Date of next meeting: 26 November 2020 
 
 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 

 Any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the area of 
its local authorities. 

 Health issues, systems or economics, not just services provided, commissioned or managed 
by the NHS. 

 

How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities of this 
Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda or may suggest 
matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to speak must be submitted 
to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am four working days before the date of the 
meeting. 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 
Chairman - Councillor Arash Fatemian 
  Email: arash.fatemian@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Policy & Performance Officer - Samantha Shepherd Tel: 07789 088173 

Email: Samantha.shepherd@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
https://oxon.cc/HOSC240920


 

Committee Officer - Colm Ó Caomhánaigh, Tel 07393 001096 
Email: colm.ocaomhanaigh@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Yvonne Rees  
Chief Executive September 2020 



 

 

 
About the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Joint Committee is made up of 15 members. Twelve of them are Councillors, seven 
from Oxfordshire County Council, and one from each of the District Councils – Cherwell, 
West Oxfordshire, Oxford City, Vale of White Horse, and South Oxfordshire. Three 
people can be co-opted to the Joint Committee to bring a community perspective. It is 
administered by the County Council. Unlike other local authority Scrutiny Committees, 
the work of the Health Scrutiny Committee involves looking ‘outwards’ and across 
agencies. Its focus is on health, and while its main interest is likely to be the NHS, it may 
also look at services provided by local councils which have an impact on health. 
 

About Health Scrutiny 
 

Health Scrutiny is about: 

 Providing a challenge to the NHS and other organisations that provide health care 

 Examining how well the NHS and other relevant organisations are performing  

 Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 

 Representing the community in NHS decision making, including responding to 
formal consultations on NHS service changes 

 Helping the NHS to develop arrangements for providing health care in Oxfordshire 

 Promoting joined up working across organisations 

 Looking at the bigger picture of health care, including the promotion of good health  

 Ensuring that health care is provided to those who need it the most 
 

Health Scrutiny is NOT about: 

 Making day to day service decisions 

 Investigating individual complaints. 
 

What does this Committee do? 
 
The Committee meets up to 5 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the relevant part of the 
Oxfordshire (or wider) NHS system and/or to the Cabinet, the full Councils or scrutiny 
committees of the relevant local authorities. Meetings are open to the public and all 
reports are available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would 
be considered in closed session. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 

 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 18) 
 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2020 (JHO3a) and to 
receive information arising from them. 
 
For ease of reference when considering the Matters Arising from the minutes, a list 
of actions is attached at the end of the minutes (JHO3b). 

4. Speaking to or Petitioning the Committee  
 

This meeting will be held virtually in order to conform with current guidelines 
regarding social distancing. Normally requests to speak at this public meeting are 
required by 9 am on the day preceding the published date of the meeting. However, 
during the current situation and to facilitate these new arrangements we are asking 
that requests to speak are submitted by no later than 9am four working days before 
the meeting i.e. 9 am on Friday 18 June 2020. Requests to speak should be sent to 
colm.ocaomhanaigh@oxfordshire.gov.uk  together with a written statement of 
your presentation to ensure that if the technology fails then your views can still be 
taken into account. A written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 
am 2 working days before the meeting. 
  
Where a meeting is held virtually and the addressee is unable to participate virtually 
their written submission will be accepted. 
  
Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 

5. Forward Plan (Pages 19 - 22) 
 

10:15 
 
The Committee’s Forward Plan is attached for consideration. 

6. County-wide community services  
 

10:20 
 
A statement from Oxford Health NHS FT on its proposals to progress a strategic 
development and quality improvement plan for its community services across 
Oxfordshire (including services at Wantage Community Hospital/OX12). 

mailto:colm.ocaomhanaigh@oxfordshire.gov.uk


- 2 - 
 

 

7. System-wide update on the COVID-19 response and recovery 
(Pages 23 - 40) 
 

10:40 
 
This item will provide a report on the key issues for the Oxfordshire system. Update 
including: 
 
 Some key learning/changes delivered during the COVID-19 response 

stage 
 NHS – update on “restart” activity e.g. primary care services 
 Winter planning*, which will include flexibility for a second COVID wave 

 
* Report will be circulated in the Addenda. 

8. Short break  
 

11:55 
 
Five minute break. 

9. COVID-19 research (Pages 41 - 44) 
 

12:00 
 
Oxford researchers have been at the forefront of national and global efforts to tackle the 
COVID-19 pandemic, with many high profile trials and studies being led by Oxford 
researchers. 
 
This briefing paper focuses on some of the key COVID-19 research being carried out in 
Oxford. 

10. Routine referrals (Pages 45 - 46) 
 

12:30 
 
The reinstatement of routine referrals to OUH services following the COVID-19 lockdown. 
Including:  
 

 Overview of the approach to re-starting referrals 

 Information on specialties where patients are being seen and treated elsewhere and how 
this is being communicated to GPs and patients  

 When OUH expect to be able to accept referrals for these specialities 

 LMC representative to attend to share views from primary care. 

11. LUNCH  
 

13:00 



- 3 - 
 

 

12. Proposed changes for health scrutiny (To Follow) 
 

13:30 
 
To consider proposals for scrutiny of issues at a BOB-wide level (Bucks, Oxon, 
Berks West). 

13. Healthwatch Report (Pages 47 - 54) 
 

14:00 
 
Report on views of health care gathered by Healthwatch Oxfordshire. 

14. Chairman’s Report (Pages 55 - 90) 
 

14:10 
 
To include an update on OX12, co-opted members and communications. 



- 4 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 
 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document.  

 
 

 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



JHO3a 

 

OXFORDSHIRE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 25 June 2020 commencing at 10.00 am 
and finishing at 4.05 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Arash Fatemian – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Mark Cherry 
Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles 
Councillor Jeannette Matelot 
Councillor Laura Price 
Councillor Alison Rooke 
District Councillor Paul Barrow 
City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers 
Councillor Charles Mathew 
 

Co-opted Members: 
 

Dr Alan Cohen 
Barbara Shaw 
 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 
 

Councillor Ian Hudspeth (for Agenda Item 10) 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting Ansaf Azhar, Corporate Director for Public Health; Sam 
Shepherd, Senior Policy Officer; Colm Ó Caomhánaigh, 
Committee Officer 

 
 

The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below.  
Copies of the agenda, reports and presentations are attached to the signed 
Minutes. 
 

 

13/20 ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN FOR 2020/21  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 
The Chairman welcomed participants to the virtual meeting.  He explained that in the 
event of a vote being required it would be carried out by roll call. 
 
The Chairman on behalf of the Committee thanked all of those who went to work or 
volunteered in order to keep everybody safe during the Covid-19 crisis. 
 
On the election of a Deputy Chairman, City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers was 
nominated by District Councillor Paul Barrow and seconded by Councillor Laura 
Price. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



JHO3a 

 
Councillor Bely-Summers was elected Deputy Chairman for 2020/21. 
 

14/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 
Apologies were received from District Councillor Sean Gaul. 
 
The Chairman noted that Councillor Mike Fox-Davies was stepping down from the 
Committee.  Councillor Charles Mathew was a temporary appointment for this 
meeting. 
 

15/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE ON THE BACK 
PAGE  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 
Dr Alan Cohen declared a personal interest as a Trustee of Oxfordshire Mind. 
 

16/20 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 4) 
 
The minutes of the meeting on 6 February 2020 were approved. 
 

17/20 SPEAKING TO OR PETITIONING THE COMMITTEE  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 
The Chairman had agreed to the following requests to speak at this meeting: 
 
Agenda Item 6 – Forward Plan 
Councillor Jane Hanna 
 
Agenda Item 7 – Covid-19 Response 
Liz Peretz 
Councillor Jane Hanna 
 
Agenda Item 8 – Oxford Clinical Commissioning Group 
Julie Mabberley 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby 
Councillor Jane Hanna 
 
Agenda Item 9 – Proposed changes for health scrutiny 
Councillor Jane Hanna 
 

18/20 FORWARD PLAN  
(Agenda No. 6) 
 
Councillor Jane Hanna asked the Committee to consider having more regular 
meetings given the increase in demands on the system in the wake of Covid-19.  The 
long-term implications are not clear yet – at local, county, regional or national level.  
She said that, while the numbers of people involved are high, it was important to 

Page 2



JHO3a 

remember the individuals and their families behind the statistics.  She hoped that the 
Committee would look into variations in the statistics across the districts as well as 
the high rates in care homes. 
 
The Chairman noted the very full agenda for this meeting following the postponement 
of the April meeting and that the volume of work is only going to increase.  It was 
agreed to discuss the way forward outside the meeting (ACTION). 
 

19/20 COVID-19 RESPONSE  
(Agenda No. 7) 
 
Liz Peretz, Oxon Keep Our NHS Public, advocated local testing as the best approach 
to tackling the spread of Covid-19.  She said that such schemes had worked in 
Durham and Sheffield and were advocated by the World Health Organisation.  She 
believed that local GPs, hospital trusts and the universities were ready to step up and 
provide such a service and she called on the local leadership to back this approach. 
 
Councillor Jane Hanna stated that communities were anxious as the lockdown eases.  
The questions surround how hotspots will be identified, how the return to work and 
school will be handled and if hospitals will be using risk assessments for vulnerable 
workers.  Test and trace will be crucial and she asked if all the necessary data was 
available in a timely way to make it work. 
 
Yvonne Rees, Chief Executive, introduced the item.  She stated that the update 
reflected the fact that the country was still in the response stage and was now slowly 
transitioning to the recovery stage – however it should be recognised this stage 
would be as, if not more, challenging than the preceding months. She emphasised 
that Oxfordshire has responded to the crisis as a system - with all partners working 
together putting our residents’ and patients’ wellbeing at the heart of our activity. 
 
Sam Foster, Chief Nursing Officer at Oxford University Hospitals Trust, on behalf of 
Chief Executive Dr Bruno Holthof, started the presentation.  She outlined a patient 
story and the impact on staff when the system had to double, and double again, its 
capacity.  Patients were nervous about being in hospital, as were their relatives who 
sometimes came in to seek their discharge. 
 
Supplying PPE was very challenging.  The hospitals operated under the national 
response framework as is still the case. 
 
Dr Ben Riley, Managing Director of Community Services at Oxford Health, described 
the two big challenges facing services: they had to establish new services to handle 
Covid-19 while at the same time reconfiguring all other services and premises.  At the 
start there were no guidelines and the thinking evolved day by day. 
 
Mark Stone, Chief Executive of South and Vale District Councils, added that it was 
important to recognise the amazing response from the community and voluntary 
sector.  The councils on their own could not have responded to all of the needs. 
 

Page 3



JHO3a 

Yvonne Rees emphasised that the system had been agile and recognised and 
implemented on-going learning during the crisis - this is normal practice but much can 
be taken forward and will inform the ‘new normal’. 
 
Stephen Chandler, Corporate Director for Adult Services, described how partnership 
working was structured.  There was a care homes cell with a dedicated contact route.  
They captured the views of care providers and the Care Alliance.  They were able to 
respond to the challenges of PPE and work on post-discharge services to avoid re-
admission. 
 
Ansaf Azhar, Corporate Director of Public Health, presenting data on the pandemic 
emphasised that this was a snapshot and the situation changed constantly.  
Oxfordshire had around the national average number of cases per head of 
population.  Urban areas had a higher number of cases due to the denser population 
but had a lower death-rate because the average age was lower. 
 
Councillor Alison Rooke asked if there was any data on the relationship between 
hospital discharges and care home cases.  She would also like to see statistics 
comparing Oxfordshire with other similar counties in the south east region rather than 
the national averages. 
 
Ansaf Azhar responded that there were massive variations in testing uptakes which 
made such comparisons difficult.  The indications were that Oxfordshire had higher 
testing rates.  The county also has a high proportion of older population. 
 
Stephen Chandler emphasised that government guidelines on discharging were 
followed to the letter and updated when necessary.  No care home had been forced 
to take anyone – they were either reassured on their concerns or an alternative was 
found.  The majority of those discharged went home as shown by nearly 1500 
additional home care hours in May compared to March. 
 
Councillor Laura Price said that there was a lack of information on the timings of 
when measures were taken.  It was also not possible to tell national from local 
decision making.  She wanted to know if clinical leads were happy that they were 
able to make decisions on clinical information or did they feel constrained by national 
guidelines.  She also thought that the voices of lower paid staff were missing. 
 
Stephen Chandler responded that decisions were taken on the basis of information 
available at the time.  The majority of patients were discharged to home and 
additional capacity became available as self-funders cancelled services and more 
family members were available at home. 
 
Sam Foster added that NHSE guidelines came out at a fast rate – mostly about 
treatment, staff deployment, PPE and risk assessments.  The Royal Colleges 
produced sometimes conflicting information – particularly on PPE.  Oxfordshire had 
the advantage of having some people working on the national guidance.  She was 
satisfied that they were able to make decisions on clinical information – autonomy 
remained with the clinicians. 
 

Page 4



JHO3a 

City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers stated that the lockdown exacerbated 
difficulties for people with mental health problems.  They had difficulties accessing 
medication because mental health was not regarded as a reason to get delivery.  Not 
allowing visitors to inpatient mental health facilities also added to anxiety. 
 
Debbie Richards, Director for Mental Health and Learning Disabilities, Oxford Health, 
responded that they continued to deliver all mental health services though they had 
to revise how that was done.  They worked with GPs and care teams to identify those 
with highest needs and advised local community groups on how to help.  
 
They understood the impact of banning visitors but most of the buildings in question 
are 19th century buildings with little room to facilitate the necessary social distancing.  
There were no deaths in any patient units. 
 
A 24 hour mental health helpline was established very quickly, aided by the South 
Central Ambulance Service.  It was staffed by specialist workers so callers were not 
handed off from one person to another.  The ambition is to have specialised staff 
available in the ambulance control room 24/7. 
 
They are currently working with colleagues in education and social care to prepare for 
the return to school.  None of the responses mentioned could have been delivered 
without the help of the voluntary sector and partners. 
 
Barbara Shaw noted the reference in the presentation to dealing gradually with 
backlogs and expected surges and asked for more information on that.  She also 
asked why the number of deaths in care homes in West Oxfordshire was higher and 
if there was any learning from that going forward. 
 
Stephen Chandler cautioned against making comparisons without taking account of 
the local contexts such as age distribution.  Approaches are being updated every 
week on the basis of the latest learning. 
 
Diane Hedges, Deputy Chief Executive, Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, 
reported that, with all of the extra measures that needed to be put in place to protect 
patients, productivity with out-patients was down to about 30% while operations were 
running at 60-70% of normal. 
 
There is now a huge backlog of non-Covid work to get through.  Cancer care will be 
prioritised.  Those who are shielding and waiting for procedures should talk to their 
GPs especially if there is any change in their condition.  There is increasing 
collaboration with Bucks and Berks to support each other and efforts will be made to 
expedite those who have waited longest. 
 
Dr Alan Cohen asked if the impact on those who cannot access online services such 
as older people and BAME communities has been assessed.  He also asked if 
Primary Care Networks had delivered or were GP Federations better able to handle 
the needs.  In addition, he asked what form a review was likely to take and who 
would be involved. 
 

Page 5



JHO3a 

Diane Hedges responded that triage was in place to assess contacts which were 
mostly coming in by telephone.  Language lines had already been in place before the 
pandemic.  All practices had access to e-consult services.  The crisis accelerated 
collaboration on all fronts including both PCNs and Federations.  There was huge 
enthusiasm for staff to engage in problem solving. 
 
Dr Ben Riley added that about 20 to 30% of patients need a face-to-face 
consultation.  Some were provided with home visits.  Practices set up safe zones for 
those who needed to visit with separate entrances and waiting room.  They have also 
been pro-actively contacting vulnerable patients such as asthma sufferers. 
 
Yvonne Rees assured the Committee that there would be a review of activity at some 
point but that they were still dealing with the crisis and only now moving into the 
recovery phase.  The presentation included information on governance which 
includes the Health and Wellbeing Board as we move into test and trace phase.  She 
suggested having a discussion about what the Committee needed going forward to 
enable it to scrutinise the issues at future meetings (ACTION). 
 
District Councillor Paul Barrow asked about decision-making around discharges to 
care homes and why some refused patients.  He added that there was a belief that 
community hospitals could have played a part in assisting in the crisis. 
 
Stephen Chandler responded that decision-making happened the same way as it 
always does – it was centred on the needs of the individual patient.  It was ultimately 
a decision for a care home whether to accept.  They were concerned about suitability 
of individuals, levels of staffing, shielding, PPE access.  The government promised 
supply of PPE but it didn’t come when promised.  The Council purchased £1m worth 
itself.  There is now a care home tracker in place which will help to identify any 
outbreaks and other issues such as staff availability. 
 
Councillor Mark Cherry noted how community pharmacies have been dependent on 
volunteers to deliver.  He asked how they were going to be supported when people 
start returning to work and there is less availability of volunteers.  He also asked if 
officers were satisfied that they have the capacity to test and trace when pubs and 
restaurants reopen on 4 July. 
 
Ansaf Azhar responded that history has shown with such pandemics that there is 
always a second peak but they will do everything they can to prevent it.  It will be 
different with different levels of transmission.  Test and trace has been in place for 
centuries to deal with notifiable diseases.  The scale however will be massive.  Health 
Protection Boards have been set up and have drafted local outbreak plans.  All 
stakeholders are represented. 
 
Diane Hedges agreed that community pharmacies played a massive and largely 
unsung role.  They are looking at different ways of prescribing to reduce the need for 
repeat visits or deliveries.  It is one of the learning points that needs to be taken 
forward – how that system can be supported. 
 
The Chairman reiterated the thanks to all organisations involved in the Covid-19 
response – all those who worked and volunteered.  He said that there will be a 

Page 6



JHO3a 

discussion outside the meeting as to the next steps and how HOSC can be a part of 
the review when it takes place. 
 
He asked if some examples of where new learning led to changes of practices could 
be provided after the meeting (ACTION). 
 

20/20 OXFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP: KEY & CURRENT 
ISSUES  
(Agenda No. 8) 
 
Julie Mabberley stated that residents of OX12 were disappointed that since the HOSC 
meeting in January nothing has been done to take account of their request that the report 
from the OX12 project be withdrawn or to progress the project to review the future of beds in 
Wantage Hospital.  She recognised that the Covid-19 pandemic has meant that priorities 
have had to change but believed that if the in-patient facilities had been open it would have 
helped ease congestion at the acute hospitals. 
 
The Committee needed to ensure that health and care needs in the area are provided locally 
and effectively using all local facilities including the Hospital, the Health Centre and the Day 
Care Centre going forward.  The Horton has been given a local HOSC and she asked if 
OX12 could have the same. 
 
The Chairman responded that the reason the Horton had its own HOSC was because the 
patient flow statistics showed that it serviced a significant number of residents from different 
local authority areas. 
 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby stated that she didn’t understand the conclusion of the 
consultation process that Wantage can access excellent care facilities.  Wantage is 
expanding and the local plan will bring more development. 
 
She suggested that it was time for a new strategy on community hospitals, looking at them in 
a different way – perhaps with a community board working alongside.  She hoped that the 
new CEO of Oxford Health would take a new approach to Wantage Hospital. 
 
She was disappointed that the suggestion of using the hospital for Covid testing was not 
taken up.  The beds need to be opened first and then look at the services that can be 
delivered. 
 
The Chairman responded that the decisions on the location of test centres were taken 
nationally. 
 
Councillor Jane Hanna speaking as a local member and member of the Task & Finish Group 
stated that Covid-19 had highlighted the importance of local communities.  It was very 
disappointing for the community to see in the report that the OX12 work had been effectively 
dropped. 
 
The community accepted that Covid-19 has changed everything but they are ready to 
engage with proposals going forward.  They have had no response to their position that the 
OX12 report was not fit for purpose.  She supported the recommendations of the Task and 
Finish Group and would welcome engagement on the way forward. 
 
Dr James Kent, the new Chief Executive of the OCCG, introduced himself to the Committee 
and outlined his background and experience.  Being new in the role he had yet to meet all of 

Page 7



JHO3a 

the stakeholders but he could see how Covid-19 had strengthened joint working across 
Oxfordshire. 
 
Councillor Mark Cherry stated that he was taken aback at the suddenness of the 
announcement of the proposed closure of the Bradley Arcade branch surgery.  He was well 
aware of the work being undertaken on the Ruscote ward by the Director for Public Health 
and the provision of new facilities but to lose an asset like this surgery was an intolerable 
retrograde step.  He noted that the premises was owned by Cherwell District Council and 
asked if they could not ensure that the facilities such as ICT be brought up to the required 
standard. 
 
Diane Hedges agreed that the way in which the proposed closure was communicated was 
not helpful.  There will be a consultation process.  Advertisements have been placed in the 
Banbury Guardian asking for views.  There are questions around sustainability given the 
personnel available.  The consultation will look at the whole picture including other services 
that operate from that branch. 
 
District Councillor Paul Barrow, speaking on behalf of the Task and Finish Group, stated that 
the OX12 project needs to be the top priority of the non-Covid work.  The Task Force has 
submitted recommendations.  Previously it was minuted that the hospital should reopen by 
September 2020.  The group realises that that is not feasible now but would recommend 
January 2021.  If there isn’t further engagement then they will have to consider rejecting the 
report.  They would like to see some early activity on the capital work, the return of maternity 
and physiotherapy by September and a response to their recommendations. 
 
Diane Hedges emphasised that the work is paused not stopped.  The Covid recovery period 
will mean a whole new range of work.  There is no doubt that the local communities stepped 
up during the crisis.  She noted though that the use of community hospital beds actually went 
down during that period as great efforts were made to get people home. 
 
She agreed to come back with a revised timeline (ACTION).  They will bring back maternity 
and physio services just as soon as the pipe work is done. 
 
Councillor Alison Rooke asked when that work will be complete.  She was concerned that the 
OX12 project might be taken up by BOB ICS and taken further from local people.  The local 
expertise that worked hard on the project does not feel that their work has been appreciated. 
 
Diane Hedges responded that the OX12 work was clearly place-based and will not be taken 
up at BOB level.  She didn’t have a date for the return of services – everything will have to be 
considered under the Covid recovery programme. 
 
Dr Alan Cohen said that it appeared that a new approach to Delayed Transfers of Care had 
emerged during the crisis and it might be useful to reengage with the Task and Finish Group 
on that.  Diane Hedges agreed (ACTION). 
 
Councillor Barrow moved the recommendations from the Task and Finish Group. 
 
Dr Kent reiterated that they were in a Level 4 incident with Covid so it was hard to commit to 
timelines.  However, he understood the urgency being expressed by the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: to accept the recommendations of the OX12 Task and Finish Group as follows: 
 

1. The OX12 project re-starts by the 15th September with engagement from System 
Partners. The group accepts that this is subject to the continuing downward 
trajectory in the county Covid-19 cases. Although the Task & Finish group 

Page 8



JHO3a 

accepts the continuing need to focus on the Covid-19 response, OX12 must be a 
top priority for non-Covid project work. 

2. That the engagement is characterized by enthusiasm, active involvement and 
real partnership involving all stakeholders. Immediately identified areas of work 
include: 

a. Continue capital works to address Legionella in Wantage Hospital. 
b. A planned return of maternity and physiotherapy services to Wantage 

Hospital by Sept 15th. 
c. Fully addressing the recommendations and comments of the T&F group. 

3. That the project should specifically address the following issues: 

 How the plans for OX12 fit into a county-wide policy including all community 
hospitals 

 How health care will dovetail with social care, which was advocated. 

 How Primary Care Networks will work and what they will do (in some detail), 
for example increasing home care, the role of medical support staff etc as 
a result of the projected increased staff as a result of the BOB ICS. 

 How the projected 35-36% population increase will affect health provision, 

 How staff changes (likely shortage of GPs, nurses and lower paid staff 
salaries) affect the plan 

 Whether funding issues exist in terms of any financial constraints on what is 
planned as the optimal situation for OX12. 

4. The Committee takes the view that the Covid pandemic has put an interval in the 
timeline for the project but has not changed the substance of what was discussed 
and agreed at the JHSOC meeting.  However, we note that at the last JHOSC 
meeting it is recorded in the minutes that the community hospital should fully re-
open by September 2020. We suggest this date be postponed to January 1st 
2021. In meantime the Task and Finish Group believes the Wantage Community 
Hospital is valuable to the response to Covid 19, Covid  recovery and post Covid 
phases and this should be kept under active consideration.  

5. That the JHOSC should consider that if the system partners are unable or 
unwilling to engage on this basis, it should consider: 

a. That the interim report from the system partners is rejected. 
b. Other recommendations which will be submitted by the T&F group to the 

October JHOSC meeting. 
 

21/20 OXFORDSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT  
(Agenda No. 10) 
 
Councillor Ian Hudspeth, Chairman of the Board, introduced the report.  He noted 
that the March meeting of the Board had to be cancelled to allow health staff to focus 
on the Covid-19 crisis. 
 
Apart from the formal meetings, the Board had a number of workshops including one 
with the Growth Board – housing being a key area with relevance to wellbeing. 
 
There were four main areas of work: the Integrated Care System, Primary Care 
Networks, the Care Quality Action Plan and the Prevention Framework. 
 

Page 9



JHO3a 

Dr Alan Cohen and Barbara Shaw asked how the Board scrutinises red and amber 
ratings in the performance reports.  They asked if trends were analysed and how did 
it feed into sharing improvement and their forward plan. 
 
Councillor Hudspeth responded that their reviews took consideration of trends.  How 
the Board can take things forward depends on the organisations with responsibility.  
He would take the challenge back to the Board and ensure that their scrutiny of 
performance reports is clear. 
 
The Chairman undertook to write to the Board on this matter (ACTION). 
 
Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles noted that performance reports are also scrutinised by 
the Performance Scrutiny Committee.  She also expressed the view that there were 
too few elected councillors on the Board.  She felt that it needed to be more 
balanced. 
 
Councillor Hudspeth responded that the membership of the Board had been 
reviewed about 18 months ago.  There were certain regulations in law about 
membership and voting rights.  He added that the Cabinet Member for Public Health 
is also on the Board. 
 
The Chairman thanked him and the Committee noted the report. 
 

22/20 OXFORD UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS QUALITY REPORT  
(Agenda No. 12) 
 
Anny Sykes, Deputy Chief Medical Officer, presented the report on behalf of Meghan 
Pandit, CMO. 
 
Councillor Laura Price asked for an explanation of the difference between extended 
LoS (Length of Stay) and Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC).  She also asked if there 
were any learning points from the Covid-19 crisis that might help resolve the long-
standing problems with reablement. 
 
Anny Sykes responded that an extended LoS could be for a medical reason or it 
could be a DToC.  The Covid-19 experience showed the value of a system-wide 
approach and they need to examine that and see how it can be applied in a non-
pandemic situation. 
 
City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers asked what measures are in place to ensure 
the wellbeing and mental health of staff.  Anny Sykes responded that this was 
already a priority before Covid.  There is a wellbeing group and wellbeing leads in 
each department.  Also through Project Wingman space can be provided to talk away 
from the pressures of the hospital. 
 
Dr Alan Cohen noted that there was a lot of evidence that mental health patients 
received poorer physical health care than others.  Anny Sykes responded that the 
way in which mental health services were being delivered had changed a lot in recent 
months and agreed that this is something that needed to be looked at. 
 

Page 10



JHO3a 

23/20 OXFORD HEALTH QUALITY REPORT  
(Agenda No. 13) 
 
Jane Kershaw, Head of Quality Governance, introduced the report.  Marie Crofts, 
Chief Nurse, described the focus for this year and shared progress against the quality 
objectives set out for 2019/20. 
 
Councillor Laura Price noted that mental health patients frequently complain about 
the buildings and how they impact negatively on their health.  She had also received 
a complaint about a patient being unable to choose the gender of a person assigned 
to a suicide watch.  Finally, she expressed the view that it is not clear how people 
should complain or give feedback. 
 
Marie Crofts agreed that the condition of buildings can be a problem.  The Warneford 
Hospital is over 200 years old and probably the oldest inpatient mental health 
building in the country.  It has been raised regionally and at national level.  In the 
meantime they are trying to incrementally improve the existing buildings. 
 
The Chairman asked that written replies be sent for the other two questions 
(ACTION). 
 

24/20 COVID-19 VACCINE DEVELOPMENT  
(Agenda No. 14) 
 
Professor Andrew Pollard of the Oxford Vaccine Group gave a presentation on the 
development of Covid-19 vaccines both in Oxford and internationally.  He stated that 
it is estimate that 5 to 7% of the population in the UK have been infected.  It would 
take years of social distancing to manage the spread in the rest of the population.  It 
is not viable to keep that up so it is essential that a vaccine be found. 
 
There are 13 vaccines at the human-testing phase – taking a range of different 
approaches.  Normally vaccine development takes 10 years but a number of the 
processes are being run in parallel to streamline the development.  When a vaccine 
is available there will need to be decisions made on who to prioritize. 
 
City Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers asked if the fact that Covid-19 has had a 
greater impact on BAME communities has informed any part of the vaccine strategy.  
Professor Pollard responded that it has been a major part of the thinking globally that 
the vaccine should be equally available to developing countries. 
 
The Chairman asked if there were any problems recruiting for vaccine trials in the 
Oxford area.  Professor Pollard stated that they recruited across the Thames Valley 
area and so have no difficulty given its large population. 
 
Barbara Shaw asked if the vaccines being developed worked by boosting the 
immune system and where that leaves people who have a compromised immune 
system. 
 

Page 11



JHO3a 

Professor Pollard agreed that vaccines work less well for people who have 
compromised immune systems but they are protected by ensuring that people around 
them are immunised. 
 
Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles asked if the Covid-19 vaccine might be mixed in with 
the annual flu vaccine in the long term.  Professor Pollard responded that it is not yet 
known if people will need repeat vaccinations for Covid. The flu virus changes all the 
time but the evidence so far suggested that Covid does not vary that much.  He 
added that it was too early to say when vaccines might be available.  Covid-19 had 
proven to be highly unpredictable so far. 
 

25/20 HEALTHWATCH REPORT  
(Agenda No. 15) 
 
Rosalind Pearce, Executive Director, introduced the report and invited questions. 
 
The Chairman asked her to outline Healthwatch’s involvement in Covid-19 and in 
particular the survey of care homes. 
 
Councillor Laura Price asked about unheard communities.  A high proportion of care 
home workers would be from the BAME communities most heavily affected by the 
pandemic and home care workers are not well unionised. 
 
Councillor Hilary Hibbert-Biles noted the suggested involvement of the Health 
Inequalities Commission and asked had that not concluded its work. 
 
Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers stated that she had received representations from 
care workers who may be reluctant to come forward with criticism for fear of losing 
their jobs.  She said that Public Health England and the Care Quality Commission 
must have had a role to play in the shortage of PPE and testing. 
 
Councillor Jeanette Matelot expressed concern that it sometimes appeared that care 
homes were being targeted for criticism.  As Covid-19 most heavily affected the 
elderly and people with underlying conditions it was not a surprise that it would be a 
big problem for care homes.  She was satisfied that they did their best. 
 
Rosaline Pearce responded that Healthwatch does not attempt to represent others as 
such but they feed back everything that they hear and try to get the voices that are 
normally unheard. 
 
Examinations of the timelines show that efforts to support care homes were generally 
one month behind everything else.  She asked where the Integrated Care System 
was at the start.  It seemed that care homes were left to local health authorities to 
deal with. 
 
Healthwatch had been focussing on social care this year before Covid-19 appeared.  
They are determined to get back out there as soon as they can and talk to paid 
carers in care homes and private homes.  There is also a need to hear the voices of 
unpaid carers. 
 

Page 12



JHO3a 

While the Health Inequalities Commission had completed its business there is a 
group that has the task of carrying out the recommendations and this crisis has 
shown the need to complete that work. 
 
It is naturally a concern when a lot of people die but she felt that care homes did their 
best and they got huge support from local communities.  
 
Ansaf Azhar added that the recommendations of the Health Inequalities Commission 
have gone to the Health Improvement Board.  The emphasis on health inequality is 
being renewed through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment report and the ward 
profiles focusing on the 10 most deprived areas of the county. 
 
The Chairman thanked Rosalind Pearce for her report and asked that the care 
homes report be circulated to the Committee when it becomes available (ACTION). 
 

26/20 PROPOSED CHANGES FOR HEALTH SCRUTINY  
(Agenda No. 9) 
 
Councillor Jane Hanna asked the Committee not to delegate scrutiny powers to the 
regional level at this time.  She noted that this was the first HOSC meeting since 
Covid-19 had changed everything.  The proposal was to delegate 20% of business to 
the BOB level (Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Berkshire West) She added that the 
experience of the OX12 project had shown how critical local involvement was. 
 
The Chairman responded that 20% was just an estimate of the amount of scrutiny 
business that might be carried out at the BOB level in response only to a statutory 
consultation.  He reminded the Committee that the OCC’s final decision on the BOB 
HOSC matter was for Full Council and this Committee was being asked to support 
the idea. 
 
Councillor Laura Price proposed that the recommendation be amended to ensure 
that this Committee sees the Terms of Reference before they are finalised.  She 
noted that it was possible for Oxfordshire members of a BOB scrutiny committee to 
be outvoted.  She cited the example of a proposal on the PET CT scanners which 
benefitted Berks and Bucks but was a setback for Oxfordshire. 
 
Councillor Alison Rooke noted that the BOB scrutiny committee would only meet 
when needed and asked who would decide that.  Currently the City and Districts are 
represented on this Oxfordshire Joint HOSC but she wondered would they not be 
concerned about being left out of the BOB level decision-making. 
 
Glenn Watson, Principal Governance Officer, responded that the proposed BOB 
HOSC had a limited role as a mandatory joint committee.  It would only be needed 
when there was a consultation at the BOB level.  The proposals being drawn up were 
to be a basis to negotiate with the other HOSCs who will have their own views.  He 
was happy to draw up the Terms of Reference and bring them back to the Committee 
so that Members could see more detail before agreeing. 
 
Dr Alan Cohen commented that there needed to be clear examples as to the kind of 
issues that would be dealt with at the BOB level.  Paragraph 26 a) could be 

Page 13



JHO3a 

interpreted as including all primary care but presumably it was mainly high-tech areas 
that would be envisaged. 
 
Barbara Shaw asked if there should be lay representatives as there are on this 
Committee.  She also suggested that perhaps it should only meet when all of the 
constituent HOSCs were agreed. 
 
The Chairman responded that it should be clear that primary care remains with the 
local HOSCs.  The only issue in recent years that covered the BOB area was the 
PET CT scanners.  He agreed that greater clarity was needed on the mechanism for 
calling meetings – perhaps a toolkit for the Chairs to use. 
 
The Chairman proposed to have separate votes on the proposals for Horton HOSC 
and BOB HOSC.  Recommendations 3 a) and 4c) were agreed. 
 
The following amended recommendations on BOB HOSC were adopted with one 
Member opposed: 
 
3b) The introduction of a new Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise health 
issues which impact upon the entire Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West 
(BOB) area, subject to the Terms of Reference being agreed by Oxfordshire Joint 
HOSC. This new committee would not discharge the health scrutiny power of referral to the 
Secretary of State. 
 
4d) Delegation to the Oxfordshire County Council Monitoring Officer and Director of Public 
Health, in consultation with the Chairman of Oxfordshire Joint HOSC, to formulate and 
finalise a Terms of Reference for a new BOB HOSC (in accordance with the principles 
outlined in this report) and for these to return to Oxfordshire Joint HOSC for agreement 
before being forwarded to Full Council. 

 
The following amendment Recommendation 5e) was agreed: 
 
The approval of the change to Horton HOSC and the BOB HOSC Terms of 
Reference by to Oxfordshire County Council by Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED: to support 
 
a) A change to the scope of the Horton Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

allow scrutiny of the development of a masterplan for the Horton General Hospital and 
pursuit of associated capital investment. 
 

b) The introduction of a new Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise 
health issues which impact upon the entire Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and 
Berkshire West (BOB) area, subject to the Terms of Reference being agreed by 
Oxfordshire Joint HOSC. This new committee would not discharge the health scrutiny 
power of referral to the Secretary of State. 

 
c) Delegation to the Oxfordshire County Council Monitoring Officer and Director of 

Public Health, in consultation with the Chairman of Oxfordshire Joint HOSC, to 
finalise the Terms of Reference for the Horton HOSC.  

 

Page 14



JHO3a 

d) Delegation to the Oxfordshire County Council Monitoring Officer and Director of 
Public Health, in consultation with the Chairman of Oxfordshire Joint HOSC, to 
formulate a Terms of Reference for a new BOB HOSC (in accordance with the 
principles outlined in this report) and for these to return to Oxfordshire Joint HOSC for 
agreement before being forwarded to Full Council. 

 
e) The approval of the change to Horton HOSC by Oxfordshire County Council by Full 

Council.  

 
 

27/20 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  
(Agenda No. 16) 
 
The report was noted. 
 
The Chairman stated that he will give serious consideration to the suggestion of 
separating out the Covid-19 issues from more general issues. 
 
 
 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



HOSC Actions from 25th June 2020            JHO3b 
 

1 
 

Item Action Lead Progress update 

Forward Plan Arrange a meeting to discuss scrutiny of COVID-19 
going forward.  

Sam Shepherd Chairman met with DPH to discuss a 
plan for Covid-19 scrutiny 

COVID-19 Convene a discussion about what the Committee 
needs going forward to enable it to scrutinise the 
COVID-19 issues at future meetings 

Yvonne Rees and 
Cllr Arash Fatemian 

Complete 

COVID-19 Provide examples of where new learning led to 
changes of practices could be provided after the 
meeting.  

System Fed into the development of items for 
the future 

CCG Update Agreed to come back with a revised timeline for 
OX12 

Diane Hedges Letter from HOSC regarding OX12 
recommendations agreed at the 
meeting sent to OH and OCCG 
(23/7/20)  

HWBB Chairman to write to the HWBB Chair to outline 
concerns from the committee about performance 
monitoring 

Cllr Arash Fatemian Complete 

P
age 17



HOSC Actions from 25th June 2020            JHO3b 
 

2 
 

Item Action Lead Progress update 

HWBB Councillor Hudspeth responded that their reviews 
took consideration of trends.  How the Board can 
take things forward depends on the organisations 
with responsibility.  He would take the challenge 
back to the Board and ensure that their scrutiny of 
performance reports is clear. 
 
The Chairman undertook to write to the Board on 
this matter (ACTION). 
Arash to write to HWBB to express the committee’s 
view that performance should be more closely 
scrutinised 
 
 BS- Homeless figures? 
 IH- will provide trend data for these things in future 
 AR- worried around the lack of challenge. HOSC to 

check up on the HWBB actions as a result of these. Like 
to know more details on the challenge of targets. 

 ACTION: more details  
 BS- How HWBB scrutinising the data that is produced? 

How sharing the improvements and moving towards 
the targets? What is the forward plan on moving the 
red targets? 

 Scrutiny committee- is the challenge- see what actions 
and the data trend. Scrutiny should be challenge to the 
Board. Need to challenge those areas better and take 
greater notes to see what is being. 

 ACTION: AF- outline the formal questions being asked 
by HOSC to the HWBB 

 
 

Cllr Arash Fatemian  

 

P
age 18



Last updated: 16 Sept 2020 

HOSC Forward Plan – September 2020 

 
The scrutiny work programming guide was shared in July 2017 and is designed to help assess the relative merits of topics brought 
forward in order to prioritise areas of focus for scrutiny through a transparent and objective process. The “PICK” methodology can 
help scrutiny committees consider which topics to select or reject. This is: 
 

Public interest 

 Is the topic of concern to the public? 
 Is this a “high profile” topic for specific local communities? 
 Is there or has there been a high level of user dissatisfaction with the service or bad press? 
 Has the topic has been identified by members/officers as a key issue? 

Impact 
 Will scrutiny lead to improvements for the people of Oxfordshire? 
 Will scrutiny lead to increased value for money? 
 Could this make a big difference to the way services are delivered or resource used? 

Council performance 

 Does the topic support the achievement of corporate priorities? 
 Are the Council and/or other organisations not performing well in this area? 
 Do we understand why our performance is poor compared to others? 
 Are we performing well, but spending too much resource on this? 

Keep in context 

 Has new government guidance or legislation been released that will require a significant change to 
services? 

 Has the issue been raised by the external auditor/ regulator? 
 Are any inspections planned in the near future? 

 
 

Meeting Date Item Title Details and Purpose Organisation 
Nov Covid-19  Learning (including patient/public engagement) 

from services changes.  

 Local Outbreak management – update on 
activity to date. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



Last updated: 16 Sept 2020 

Meeting Date Item Title Details and Purpose Organisation 

Future Items 

TBC PET Scanning  This item will provide follow-up information following 
the change of provider of PET scanning services for 
patients outside of Oxfordshire (but within the 
Thames Valley region). This item will report to the 
committee on the clinical pathways followed as a 
result of the change, the numbers of patients and 
patient flows. 

 It will also include any information on serious 
incidents which are reported.  

 

 Adult Social Care Green 
Paper 

 The potential implications of the ASC Green paper 
on the local health and social care system 
 

System-wide 

 Health in planning and  
infrastructure 

 How is NHSE engaging in the planning process, incl. 
the Health approach to CIL and s.106 funding  

 Learning from Healthy New Towns. 

 Impact on air quality and how partners are 
addressing this issue. 

 How can HOSC best support the planning function 

CCG, NHSE, Districts/City 
Planners, PH, OCC 
Infrastructure  

 Healthcare in Prisons and 
Immigration Removal 
Centres 

 More in depth information on performance and how 
success is measured.  

 New KPIs in place from April 2017 

NHS England 

 Pharmacy   Levels of access and changes to pharmacy 
provision, incl. mapping provision and impact on 
health inequalities 

 

 Social prescribing  The roll out and outcomes of social prescribing pilots 
and learning that can be shared. (Berinsfield vs. 
Cherwell) 

 How District Councils and other partners link with 
and support social prescribing 

 

P
age 20



Last updated: 16 Sept 2020 

Meeting Date Item Title Details and Purpose Organisation 
 Health support for children 

and young people with 
SEND 

 How is Health contributing to improving outcomes for 
children and young people with Special Educational 
Needs and Disabilities and working with partners in 
Education and Care? 

 Linked to outcomes of SEND Local Area Inspection 

OH, OUH 

 Priorities in Health – 
Lavender Statements 

 How the CCG manages competing priorities – 
Thames Valley Priorities Forum 

CCG 

 Commissioning intentions  Committee scrutinises the CCG Commissioning 
Intentions 

CCG 

 Optometry   Provision of optometry in Oxfordshire. 

 Trends and issues in the provision of optometry 
services.  

 How best practice and innovation from elsewhere 
are used within the services in the county. 

 To include a summary of the pathway and waiting 
times for NHS cataract surgery. 
 

CCG 

June 2021 HWBB Annual Report An annual report to HOSC on the activity of the HWBB, 
covering:  

 Activity of the Board over the financial year 2019/20 
in pursuit of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 Performance against aims and objectives during that 
period, including an overview of performance for all 
the sub-partnerships of the Board (e.g. 
HIB/Children’s Trust & Integrated Systems Delivery 
Board). 

 Plans for 2021/22.  

HWBB 

April 2021 Quality reports   Progress against stated priorities from providers  
 

OUH/OH 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

          

 

COVID-19 Restart, Recover, Renew Update for Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for meeting on 24 September 2020 

1. Restart (restoration) 

As of 1 August the NHS Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response (EPRR) incident level moved from Level 4 (national) 
to Level 3 (regional). Before this announcement, work was underway within the NHS to restart services that had been paused 
during the initial part of the COVID-19 pandemic. A letter published by NHS England set out the NHS priorities for the third phase of 
responding to the pandemic. This included: 

 Accelerating the return to near-normal levels of non-COVID-19 health services, making full use of the capacity available in 
the ‘window of opportunity’ between now and winter. 

 Preparation for winter demand pressures, alongside continuing vigilance in the light of further probable COVID-19 
spikes locally and possibly nationally. 

 Doing the above in a way that takes account of lessons learned during the first COVID-19 peak; locks in beneficial 
changes; and explicitly tackles fundamental challenges including support for our staff, and action on inequalities and 
prevention. 

The resumption of routine, elective acute hospital services provided by Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (OUH), 
which were paused in line with national guidance at the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, are presented in a separate paper for this 
HOSC meeting’s agenda. The winter plan (as a presentation) forms part of this agenda item. Below outlines information relating to 
GP, community, mental health and learning disability services in Oxfordshire including temporary closures, how they provided 
services through the first few months of the pandemic including lockdown (and beyond) and how they are now operating: 

1.1. GP Services 

Since the beginning of the pandemic in line with national guidance, GP practices introduced a total telephone triage system and 
have been working differently to offer appointments to patients using telephone and online tools to reduce the need for people to 
attend the practice in person where there is no clinical need for them to do so, reducing the risk of COVID-19 transmission. When 
necessary patients were seen face to face – either in the practice, at home or in CALM clinics specifically set up to manage 
symptomatic COVID-19 patients in a safe environment. OCCG provided support GPs to enable them to deliver more telephone 
appointments and to safely restore face-to-face services where telephone and online services cannot be used.  As you will see 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/third-phase-response/


 

2 
 

from the graph below, during the height of wave 1 of the pandemic, there was a significant drop in face to face appointments due to 
the new way of working to keep patients and staff safe. As the pandemic continued it became apparent that although GP services 
were available, many people were not accessing care for potentially serious conditions when they needed it, so Oxfordshire like 
other areas of the country introduced the ‘Help Us Help You’ badged campaign, giving the public the message that appropriate 
arrangements are in place ensure health and care services are safe for patients and staff and that people should not wait but 
access care when they need it.  

Since May, the number of appointments has steadily increased each month. The graph1 below shows the different types of 
appointment with the total number of appointments (Grand Total) for March being almost 310,000 and the number for July 2020 
being almost 300,000. 

 

                                                           
1. 1 NHS Digital data illustrating the number of monthly appointments (and mode of appointment) delivered by General Practice in Oxfordshire.  Accepting that this is not a 

perfect data set, comparisons over time show a continued increase in the total numbers of appointments moving steadily towards pre COVID levels of activity. 

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

450000

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
e

c-
1

9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

Face-to-Face

Home Visit

Telephone

Unknown

Video/Online

Grand Total

P
age 24



 

3 
 

OCCG continues to work with GP practices and good progress is being made to restore services to patients, for example 
immunisations and screening opportunities, addressing the backlog and utilising the benefits and learning gained through some of 
our COVID response work. There are a number of competing pressures that are challenging primary care including 

 Infection Prevention and Control measures to ensure COVID secure environments  

 Scale of work for the flu vaccination programme (PPE confirmation has helped) 

 Continued workforce resilience – proportion of vulnerable practice staff 

 Balance of backlog and present / future requirements 

Support mechanisms and approaches are being put into place to mitigate some of these pressures and challenges.  OCCG are 
working together with GP practices and providers to plan and prepare for any future surge and the increases in activity that is 
expected this winter (see below). For flu, there is also a strong system approach, support for risk stratification and vulnerable 
patient identification with good cross working with local authority partners 

GPs and NHS providers continue to care for patients affected by COVID-19 and this includes rehabilitation for those who were 
worst affected.  Planning for winter, there will be additional capacity to support primary care with a possible second surge.  This will 
be in the form of three community based clinics providing COVID care supported by a visiting service for those unable to travel – 
one clinic will be located in the north (Banbury), one in the south (Wallingford) and one in Oxford. These are not walk-in clinics and 
patients needing to attend will be directed to their nearest clinic with an appointment either by their own GP or by NHS 111. 

 
1.2. Services provided by Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust (OHFT) 
 
1.2.1. Community Services 

During lockdown and the following period, OHFT community services has continued to deliver a wide range of core services to 
patients across Oxfordshire, for example community nursing and hospital at home. We are very grateful for our staff who, despite 
reporting substantially increased levels of fatigue, continue to show huge amounts of resilience and dedication. 

 

OHFT Community Services: Maintaining patient access to priority services  

At the beginning of the pandemic, OHFT community services implemented the NHS ‘national standard operating procedures’ to 
prioritise essential services. This included a risk stratification approach for patients receiving care by: 

P
age 25



 

4 
 

 Supporting the ‘home discharge today’ of patients from acute and community beds, as mandated in the Hospital Discharge 
Service Requirements, and ensured patients cared for at home received urgent care when they needed it (NB. To prevent 
transmission of coronavirus to other residents, patients with confirmed or symptomatic COVID-19 are not discharged from 
community hospital wards into care homes until the required time period has passed after the onset of symptoms, they 
have tested negative and it is judged to be clinically appropriate to do so) 

 Using digital technology to provide advice and support to patients wherever possible 

 Prioritising support for high-risk individuals who were advised to self-isolate for 12 weeks 

 Applying the principle of mutual aid with health and social care partners, as decided through the local resilience forum 

 Continuing essential services - community services continued to see urgent and high-risk patients throughout the crisis 
and responded to other patient needs and problems as they arose 

 Triaging patients (from all services) to prioritise urgent need; services continue to triage and support patients through the 
digital route 

 Children’s safeguarding remained/s a priority for all community children’s services. Safeguarding support has been 
provided throughout the pandemic period. OHFT worked closely with Social Care and Education at a strategic and 
operational level to ensure that best practice and good communication regarding vulnerable children and families was/is in 
place 

 

 

Harnessing innovative approaches 

Over the past 6 months, many of the services have been delivered in different and creative ways, for example using different 
methods to work with children in our complex care team including walking sessions” where younger service users and healthcare 
staff would meet up to ‘walk and talk’ in appropriately confidential outdoor settings, to reduce infection risk – many young people 
reported positive experiences of this approach to therapy. Teams have also worked with patients and families to support them to 
play a more active role in their own care where safe and appropriate.  

Like many other areas of the NHS, the Trust rapidly implemented its use of technology to support patients through a digital 
response – such as the delivery of speech and language assessments through video consultation technology, which would 
otherwise be high infection risk procedures during the pandemic if delivered entirely face-to-face. 

Staff from services with reduced activity were redeployed to ensure resilience of critical service areas, for example community 
hospital inpatient services and the emergency multi-disciplinary assessment units in Henley, Witney and Abdingon. The Trust 

P
age 26



 

5 
 

continued to receive and deliver same day and urgent referrals during the initial stages of COVID-19 when some other services 
were paused. There was a considerable amount of collaborative working with primary, acute and social care colleagues to increase 
support to care homes and the Trust introduced specific sites to provide care for COVID-19 positive patients. Specific activities 
included: 

1. Training of staff on use of PPE and infection prevent and control; delegation of healthcare tasks; and outbreak management, 
2. Daily check ins and monitoring/risk rating care homes in partnership with OCC including staffing; outbreaks; PPE supplies and testing 
3. Support for care homes through a daily duty number; 24/7 end of life care support line; on line resources; weekly visits; support with 

testing; support with staffing issues; 
4. Partnership working with GPs and the CCG to support home rounds 
5. Bronze cell with system partners to ensure our response was appropriate and system wide and to escalate issues 

 

OHFT’s approach to restoring services 

OHFT has a three phased approach to restoration of its services; phase one is complete and included an estates review which 
looked at safe use of space, capacity and the prioirity of estate for face to face clinical work (for example, allowing services to return 
in a safe manner to community hospitals and other community-based premises). Phase one also re-purposed estate for the priority 
areas of service delivery and reviewed the use of use of digital / remote versus face to face constulations / clinics. 

Phase two is almost complete and includes operating services in a ‘new normal’ (use of PPE, digital etc); communication of 
changes to services to patients; review of demand and capacity for each service and review of backlog of appointments and 
capacity to deliver going forward.  

For phase three of the restoration programme, which is underway, OHFT’s community services will refresh their transformation 
plans to align with a strategic development and improvement programme. This will address long-standing staffing and quality 
issues, such as addressing any outstanding recommendations from the previous CQC review, andcontinue the positive learning 
from its COVID-19 response, as well as continuing to work with partners to develop and implement the ambitions and objectives of 
the Oxfordshire health and care system, in line with the NHS Long Term Plan.  

Alongside this, OHFT will continue to embrace its digital offer to patients and build on service user feedback; increase face to face 
consultations / therapy adhering to safe practice guidance; plan for a surge in referrals; clear the backlog of patients waiting for 
appointments and assessments; support its staff with their health and wellbeing and plan for a possible second wave of the 
pandemic. 

  

P
age 27



 

6 
 

Service Service Status Transition to Recovery  Risks/Challenges Planned actions 

Childrens 
universal 
services 

Recovery plan being 
implemented with a goal 
by the end of the year to 
return to full delivery of 
the healthy child 
programme. 

Children and young 
people returning to 
school which impacts on 
service delivery 

Safeguarding a priority 

Supporting families who 
experienced particular 
difficulties during lockdown 
with extra support. Focus 
on mental health of young 
people in school health 
nursing team. 

Not everyone can communicate 
through digital means 

Risk that quality of assessment may 
be lower if not face to face 

Risk that more staff may be off sick 

Home working challenge for many 
staff 

Ensuring all children and families 
that need face-to-face care can 
access this 

Practitioner groups have been set 
up to collate themes of presenting 
clinical need and service offer will 
be adjusted to take account of 
family and childrens needs post 
Lockdown 

Monthly reporting to capture 
identified needs, which will be fed 
into Oxon System CYP Recovery 
Group 

Ongoing public health messages 
regarding illness management 
and accident prevention are 
planned 

Childrens 
complex 
services 

Recovery plan being 
implemented 

Waiting list being 
managed in children’s 
therapy team 

Children’s nursing 
service having reduced 
requests for respite due 
to parental anxiety about 
transmission of covid.  

Support of vulnerable 
children a priority 

Children with special needs  
may not be able to access 
school 

Backlog of cases awaiting 
assessment for children’s 
therapy 

Potential for parents of sick 
children to tire if no respite. 

Not everyone can communicate 
through digital means 

Risk that quality of assessment may 
be lower if not face to face 

Risk that more staff may be off sick 

Home working challenge for many 
staff 

Ensuring all children and families 
that need face-to-face care can 
access it 

Continue to monitor caseloads 
and prioritise those with the 
highest presenting clinical need  

Engaging with System Winter 
developments to manage CYP 
out of hospital 

Ongoing monitoring of service 
user family/carer feedback and 
outcomes 

P
age 28



 

7 
 

Care home 
support 

Service providing extra 
enhanced support in 
care homes (see detail 
on system wide 
approach) 

Service providing extra 
training, support, daily 
checks, weekly visits and a 
MDT  

A large number of care homes to be 
covered, using technology in some 
cases, however some care homes 
reluctant to use MS Teams or do not 
have IT support. 

Turnover of staff means that the 
training has to be repeated regularly.  

Some care homes require more 
support and advice than others as 
there is still some nervousness 
within some care home staff  

Started to implement the new 
NHS Enhanced Care in Care 
Homes specification in 
conjunction with primary care 
networks and commissioners  

New MDTs being piloted in nine 
sites across Oxfordshire. A heat 
map has been developed that all 
the MDT can access to 
understand the patient status at a 
glance and be able to react to any 
issues.  

Complex care 
team 

The service is operating 
as business as usual 
and reverted back to 
covering only contracted 
postcodes since July 
2020 (the service 
delivered county wide 
home first during the 
Covid peak with support 
from re-deployed staff). 

The service operations 
were not paused; they were 
increased during Covid to 
facilitate system flow. Re-
deployed staff returned to 
their substantive roles. 

Contractual challenges ; the 
directorate is working with 
OCC/CCG to implement an interim 
contract to support Community 
Hospitals Home First utilising this 
team. 

A number of staff at high risk/ were 
shielding but working to facilitate 
safe return to work with Oc Health 
support. 

Deliver county wide Home First 
across all community hospitals. 

  

P
age 29



 

8 
 

Neighbourho
od Teams 

All services now 
resumed with all staff 
back to their home 
service. 

All services assessing any 
backlog from the limited 
services provided during 
covid.  

Larger services have 
managed to recover 
quickly, for smaller 
specialist services already 
under pressure, the patient 
waiting time has increased 
and due to the size of the 
service it will take longer to 
recover the position. This is 
mitigated through regular 
review of the caseload and 
prioritising patients. 

A large number of our patients have 
limited access to IT / smart phones 
to enable more digital working. 

The national guidelines for face to 
face contacts both in clinics and in 
the home decreases the capacity for 
clinical delivery and for some 
services such as podiatry this is 
having an effect on outcomes for 
patients having to wait longer to be 
seen. This is mitigated through 
regular review of the caseload and 
prioritising patients. 

The needs of shielding patients is 
different from our usual patient 
cohort, and we are working with 
commissioner and partners to 
support them appropriately.  

Many services have maintained 
non face to face activity if possible 
to reduce the risk to vulnerable 
patients. Non face to face activity 
is delivered through phone calls 
and new digital methods. 

We have also worked with some 
patients for provide more self-care 
packages, for example more 
patients want to undertake their 
own injections, simple dressing 
changes by patients or carers with 
clinical assessment alternate 
dressing changes.  

Services are being remodelled to 
keep providing a locality based 
approach to service delivery in 
line with the NHS Long Term 
plan.  

Community 
inpatient 
services 

Currently Covid free 

Admitting to all wards.  

Patients are cohorted to 
ensure the risk of Covid-
19 to existing and new 
admission is reduced  

A reduced out patients 
service will be available 
from 1st October 

Development of flow chart 
for safe admission from 
acute and community 

Review of Out patient 
space for safe opening of 
clinics 

Review of safe staffing 

Increased use of digital 
technology 

Return to reduced visiting 

Return to normal staffing  

Second wave and impact on 
available staff 

Increased parental leave to support 
children who have to self isolate 
from school 

Discharge to assess working with 
community teams and system 
partners to expedite earlier 
discharge /reduce delays 

  

P
age 30



 

9 
 

Urgent and 
ambulatory 
care  

Core services continued 
throughout the covid 
response., services that 
had limited their hours 
are providing to normal 
hours with the exception 
of Wallingford FAU 

Plans for the restoration of 
Wallingford provision are 
being progressed with the 
CCG.  All other services 
have fully resumed 

Staffing capacity if there is a second 
phase of covid 

Continue with increased digital 
consultations where safe to do so.   

Continuing 
Health Care 

Oxon CHC: Due to 
suspension of national 
guidance from 23 March 
2020- 31 Aug 2020, 
there is a backlog of 
around 200 cases 
awaiting CHC 
assessment.  

Buck CHC: Due to 
suspension of national 
guidance from 23 March 
2020-31 August 2020- 
there is backlog of 
around 280 cases 
awaiting CHC 
assessment. 

From 1 September 2020, 
CHC business as usual 
commenced as per 
revised national 
guidance; new guidance 
was issued to manage 
the Covid funded 
backlog (Deferred 
assessments) by end of 
March 2021. 

Re-deployed staff were 
asked to return to their 
business as usual teams 
from 1 Sept.  

Backlog programmes set 
up for each county with 
additional funding for 
backlog teams whilst 
business as usual teams 
manage new cases.  

1. Access to information held 
by nursing/residential care 
homes during Covid might 
delay the team’s ability to 
manage the backlog. 

2. Recruitment challenged in 
the backlog and business as 
usual teams especially in 
Bucks. 

3. Social care input and 
challenges might impact 
ability to undertake MDT’s 

Deliver the backlog programmes 
by March 2021; recruitment is 
underway with additional funding 
agreed. 

P
age 31



 

10 
 

Podiatry 
services 

 Podiatry service 
ceased clinic activity 
from 23 March 2020 
and operated a 
domiciliary service. 
Patients were risk 
stratified in order to 
prioritise ulcerated 
and high risk patients 
in their own homes. 

 Currently most clinic 
sites are operating 
again with reduced 
capacity relating to 
covid restrictions. 11 
patients per clinic 
rather than the 17 
pre covid. 

 The reduced 
capacity is to allow 
cleaning of the room, 
equipment and 
managing the patient 
traffic in clinical 
spaces.  

 

 From 1.6.20 the service 
re-opened most of the 
community clinic sites 
and started to phase 
down the Domiciliary 
service only retaining a 
Domiciliary service to 
those unable to attend 
clinic. 

 The service is currently 
operational at 13 of its 
15 locations with the 
final 2 sites operational 
by 5.10.20. 

 Whole service: 15 sites 
with a maximum 
capacity of 42 
clinics/chairs. 

 Opening and through 
June / July: 31 (73.8%) 
of clinics/chairs were 
open 

 From 1 November 
20202 the aim is to 
have 36 (85.7%) of the 
42 clinics/chairs open. 

 

The reduction in capacity remains 

the largest risk: balancing 

management of the backlog with 

responding to new referrals and 

exacerbation of existing patients.  

Reduced capacity has had the 

following impact:  

 No nail surgery was offered. 
This is now being provided at 
some sites.  

 Only urgent or emergency new 
patient referrals were being seen 
with other new patients put on a 
waiting list.  

 Any patient classified as 
ulcerated/High Risk in 
acuity/severity of foot problem 
may not have been seen since 
23.3.20 unless they have 
developed a problem.   

 Ongoing concern that non-
urgent patients may develop 
complications and may be 
unaware  

 Some patients have developed 
serious foot problems and the 
service has 23 reported 
incidents of this nature. 

 The service is unable to 
prioritise new patients with 
routine foot care which may 
require primary care to manage 
these in the meantime 

 Some routine new patients 
assessments are now being 
seen in the clinics. 

 The service is starting to 
maker progress in reducing 
the backlog of patients  

 A podiatry service task force 
has been set up to problem 
solve the above issues, these 
issues are reflected in other 
podiatry services so learning 
from other sites will take 
place. 

 

P
age 32



 

11 
 

1.2.2. Mental Health, Learning Disability & Autism Services 

OHFT’s Mental Health, Learning Disability & Autism Services Directorate maintained its services throughout the past six months 
but some were delivered in very different ways. Similar to community services staff from the directorate were redeployed to critical 
service areas in order to aid the response to COVID-19. Most emergency and urgent patients were seen face to face and all urgent 
Care Services remained open including the Safe Havens2 in Oxford and Banbury although these moved to a virtual offer. Safe 
Havens are continuing to offer telephone and digital consultations as well as garden group sessions (dependent on weather) to 
accommodate social distancing and are continuing to explore alternative options as winter approaches.   

A new freephone 24x7 mental health crisis support line was introduced for children, young people and adults at the beginning of 
April; the services received over 1000 calls in the first seven weeks, and a total of 2650 to date. With support from Oxfordshire 
Mind, the support line operated during the pandemic to provide people with specialist mental health care as NHS 111 was receiving 
an increasing number of COVID-19 related calls. The round-the-clock helpline has made it quicker and easier for people in 
Oxfordshire to get the right advice they need for their mental health and wellbeing. It is operational 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week. Like NHS 111, people call when they need to find out when and where to get help and to access support from mental health 
professionals. This service has continued and work is underway with commissioners and the NHS111 and 999 provider (SCAS) to 
develop a sustainable solution supporting emergency services and the public.   Our mental health, learning disability & Autism 
services have significantly increased the use of technology to support assessment and treatments and we have ongoing evaluation 
of this.  We have found that our digital offers have improved completion of treatments and reduced missed appointments. We 
recognise that this is not the preferred mode of access for all service users and we have resumed face to face offers as well 
wherever we are able. 

Services are currently focussed on our phase three restoration. Activity levels for services overall are back to the usual range with 
some teams now beginning to see a surge in demand.  Where demand had reduced clinicians saw more patients so in many 
services, routine waits have started to reduce through the increased productivity of using digital solutions.  

We have with system partners evaluated progress and are resetting plans to deliver our Mental Health Transformation programme 
to ensure the Long Term Plan priorities are delivered in Oxfordshire.    

 

  

                                                           
2 These services are a specialised safe haven offering an out of hours safe space for people experiencing mental health crisis.  

P
age 33



 

12 
 

Mental health, learning disability & Autism service status and restoration 

 

  

P
age 34



 

13 
 

 

 

  

P
age 35



 

14 
 

2. Key learning across the system 
The devastating impact of COVID-19 has represented a challenge to our communities and across our services on a scale of which 
we have never seen before in our lifetime. However it has highlighted the incredible value we add when we work flexibly across 
health, local government, business, and the voluntary and community sector. This is especially the case when we join up 
preventative and capacity-building services with demand-led acute services in order to reduce the demand on acute services and, 
more importantly, to improve outcomes for Oxfordshire residents. This is the most important piece of learning for the system and 
work continues through the recovery stage to build upon this. Below outlines some of the other key learning points during COVID-
19 from across health and care: 

 Teams at the OHFT and OUH have led the way, at a national level, in the roll-out of new digital services: Patients were able 
to continue to access services during the COVID-19 lockdown without having to attend hospital, by using video 
consultations. Before the pandemic, very few departments at OUH were using technology to conduct remote consultations 
with patients. But since its launch in the middle of March 2020 (until 6 September) 17,278 such consultations have been 
carried out using the Attend Anywhere (AA) platform, allowing clinical teams - from cancer to paediatrics, from haemophilia 
to antenatal care - to continue delivering vital services to patients. Similarly OHFT were able to roll out digital consultations 
rapidly; as one of only seven mental health Global Digital Exemplar trusts, clinicians were already embracing digital 
innovation and had already started to trial digital consultations with patients. When COVID-19 hit, OHFT were therefore able 
to respond rapidly – in January nearly all consultations were in person (only 14% remote, 86% face to face), whereas now 
the majority are remote (53% remote versus 47% face to face) - remote includes phone, digital, email. This allows OHFT to 
continue to offer important therapy to patients, but to do so in a way that is as safely distanced as possible for patients and 
staff. OHFT has now surpassed 60,000 online consultations; it is believed OHFT has achieved the highest number of digital 
consultations in the country. 

 Collaboration on research: OUH, in collaboration with its academic partners, have led trials that are helping to shape the 
optimal treatment of COVID-19 throughout the world; and through the Jenner Institute OUH have supported the development 
of a vaccine that might stop its future spread. 

 Supporting BAME communities: as it became apparent that people from BAME communities were being more adversely 
affected by COVID-19 the NHS and local authorities further developed relationships and worked with community and 
religious leaders to raise awareness of staying safe during COVID-19; information was developed and distributed to support 
the Muslim community; primary care social prescribers focused on BAME needs and translation services available; this was 
also supported by Healthwatch reaching out to community links and providing community support. 

 Data sharing / Health Information Exchange (HIE): HIE was launched; the system presents clinicians with information about 
their individual patients from both OUHT patient record and the Primary Care patient record. The view is live, which means 

P
age 36

https://www.england.nhs.uk/digitaltechnology/connecteddigitalsystems/exemplars/mental-health-global-digital-exemplars/


 

15 
 

the most up to date information is available to support direct patient care. For example, following discharge from hospital, 
GPs have direct access to test results from hospital rather than waiting for them to be sent. The tool also provides access to 
the Digital Care Plan and is accessible to GPs working in the COVID-19 clinics. The system has been in the planning for two 
years, it took 13 days of dedicated collaborative effort from a multi-disciplinary, cross-organisational team during the early 
days of the pandemic to make it available.  

 Multi-disciplinary team / organisational approach: for example there was a coordinated primary, acute and community care 
response across Oxfordshire to deliver COVID-19 clinics and a home visiting service to support people with coronavirus in 
the community. This rapid response brought together the people and resources of the Oxfordshire GP practices, Primary 
Care Networks, GP federations, acute and community teams from OHFT and OUH, supported by OCCG, Oxfordshire 
County Council and other partners, into one co-ordinated team effort. 

 

3. Public engagement around changes made during COVID-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic has fundamentally changed the way we provide health and care in the county and indeed the country. In 
response to the pandemic health and care organisations have made rapid changes to how services are accessed and delivered in 
order to protect patients, staff and the wider community from the virus.  

We need to use this as a lens to restart those services that were paused at the start of the pandemic, recover and renew services 
and engage the public about the future of services following rapid implementation of new ways of working. 

Prior to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic the NHS locally was already looking at how it addressed the following challenges and 
opportunities: 

 Rising demand for services 

 Changing demographics including population rise and older population 

 Workforce challenges 

 Financial pressures 

 People living with multiple long term conditions  

 Health inequalities 

 Old and poor quality estate 

 New technology advances  

 Emerging new models of care 

P
age 37



 

16 
 

 
So that we can understand the impact of the pandemic and the changes, to the way services are delivered, for our residents we are 
proposing seek feedback from local people in Oxfordshire around the following themes to inform plans going forward: 

 Non face-to-face services: accessing care using technology such as video, telephone, apps and emails. We are aware of 
some of the barriers and need to understand how to mitigate these. 

 Community services: organisations working together to promote independence and deliver care in people’s homes and 
communities. 

 Keeping People Safe: delivering services differently to prevent the spread of infections. 

 Reducing health inequalities: improving health for vulnerable groups and people living in deprived areas. 

Following this engagement programme; the information and ideas gathered will feed into our understanding of the experience of 
patients, their enthusiasm for change and the impact on their health and wellbeing. It will also inform future plans for services and 
any requirement to undertake formal consultation.  

3.1. What we know already? 

We are currently undertaking a mapping exercise to look at what patients have already told us about their experience of using 
services during COVID-19 and the impact of the way services were delivered during the lockdown phase of the pandemic. This will 
inform the engagement and identify any gaps to investigate further. 

3.2. Plans for engagement  

OCCG has worked with a co-production championi from the County Council’s network of champions to develop the engagement 
which will:  

 Support the NHS in understanding the views of residents (including those with poor health outcomes and from BAME 
groups), and other stakeholders on their views of healthcare services in the future 

 Enable the NHS to co-design options for our approach to healthcare including location of services in dialogue with 
patients and stakeholders (including staff) 

 Ensure the NHS in Oxfordshire is adhering to a process for redesigning services that is in line with best practice and 
legal requirements 

We recognise that our approach to how we undertake this process needs to take into account the impact of COVID-19 on how we 
can engage with our population and stakeholders. However, this does not mean we cannot undertake meaningful engagement. 

We will use the following ways to engage: 

P
age 38



 

17 
 

 Online engagement survey to help us understand resident’s views on changes that have been made during COVID-19.  

 Online engagement survey to help us understand our staff’s (across all Oxfordshire health and care organisations) views 
on changes that have been made during COVID-19.  

 Engagement toolkit – to support small community groups, families, town and parish councils, Patient Participation 
Groups etc to hold their own discussions and then feedback to us. 

 Outreach work supported by the engagement toolkit via the CCG’s equality and access team; community hubs, faith 
leaders and through the third sector. 

 Online workshops and Focus Groups  

 Telephone interviews  

 Engagement with the newly developed workstreams of the Oxfordshire Whole System Recovery programme of work 
 

3.3. Timeline 

 

 

i The co-production champion’s main aim is to work with people to help them learn about, use and embed co-production, so it becomes the usual way of working. The co-

production champions group is made up of people who have experience of using, or caring for someone using, health and social care services, people who work in the 

voluntary and community sector, and staff who work in health and social care. Their job is to enable co-production to spread, by championing co-production, teaching 

people about it, and training and supporting more people to do it.  

 

                                                           

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

COVID-19 RESEARCH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
Oxford researchers have been at the forefront of national and global efforts to tackle the COVID-19 
pandemic, with many high profile trials and studies being led by Oxford researchers.  
 
A large proportion of these are supported by the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) 
Oxford Biomedical Research Centre (BRC), which is based at Oxford University Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust and run in partnership with the University of Oxford.  
 
The Oxford BRC, whose Steering Committee is chaired by the Trust’s Chief Medical Officer, played a 
key role in the early days of the pandemic by releasing funding to kick-start key research projects, 
including the search for a COVID-19 vaccine.    
 
The Oxford BRC, currently chaired by Professor Helen McShane, was one of the original five BRCs 
established by the NIHR in 2007 to improve the translation of basic scientific developments into 
healthcare benefits for NHS patients.  
 
Every five years, OUH and the University bid for NIHR funding; in the last round, the BRC was 
awarded £114m for the period 2017 to 2022 to support groundbreaking innovation across its 20 
research themes. BRC investigators have dual appointment in the Trust and the University. 
 
Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, 2,897 OUH patients have participated in 21 research 
studies supported by the NIHR Clinical Research Network. 
 
This briefing paper focuses on some of the key COVID-19 research being carried out in Oxford. 
 
2. OXFORD COVID-19 VACCINE TRIAL 
The Oxford COVID-19 vaccine trial took a major step forward in July when the results of Phase I/II of 
the trial showed that not only were there no early safety concerns but also the vaccine induced a 
strong immune response. The results, published in The Lancet, indicate that the vaccine provoked a 
T cell response within 14 days of vaccination and an antibody response within 28 days.  
 
During the study, participants who received the vaccine had detectable neutralising antibodies, and 
these responses were strongest after a booster dose. The next step in studying the vaccine is to 
confirm that it can effectively protect against SARS-CoV-2 infection. 
 
Three leading members of the Oxford BRC’s Vaccines Theme are leading the trial: Professor Sarah 
Gilbert and Professor Adrian Hill of the University of Oxford’s Jenner Institute and Professor Andrew 
Pollard of the University’s Oxford Vaccine Group. The BRC provided crucial funding to get the trial up 
and running and then helped to fund an evaluation of the safety of the vaccine. Under an agreement 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9

https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/oxford-coronavirus-vaccine-produces-strong-immune-response-study-finds/


signed in April, AstraZeneca is responsible for the development and worldwide manufacturing and 
distribution of the vaccine. 
 
Late-stage clinical trials are taking place in Brazil and South Africa, while trials are also planned for 
Japan and Russia. A new arm of the trial was launched in the US in early September. 
 
If you would like to know more about the Oxford COVID-19 vaccine trial, you can watch Professor 
Pollard talking about the development of the vaccine candidate and the progress which the trial is 
making. It is available on YouTube. 
 
3. RECOVERY TRIAL (exploring potential treatments for COVID-19 symptoms) 
Oxford University researchers are leading the RECOVERY trial, the world’s biggest trial looking at 
whether existing treatments can tackle the symptoms of COVID-19. They have found that one of the 
drugs they were testing, dexamethasone, a cheap and widely available steroid, reduced the risk of 
death in COVID-19 patients on ventilators by a third, and by a fifth in those on oxygen. The 
international REMAP-CAP trial, in which OUH and university researchers have participated, 
confirmed that corticosteroids like dexamethasone can significantly improve outcomes for severely 
ill patients with COVID-19. 
 
The chief investigators of the RECOVERY trial, Professor Peter Horby and Professor Martin Landray, 
announced in June that the trial had found no clinical benefit from using two of the other drugs 
being tested on hospitalised patients with COVID-19: the anti-malaria drug hydroxychloroquine and 
lopinavir-ritonavir, an antiviral treatment commonly used to treat HIV. 
 
Since it began in March 2020, the RECOVERY trial has recruited more than 12,200 patients across 
176 NHS hospitals.  
  
If you would like to know more about the RECOVERY Trial, you can watch Professor Landray, the 
BRC’s Theme Lead for Clinical Informatics, explaining the background to the trial and the latest 
developments. It is available on YouTube. 
 
4. OTHER TREATMENT TRIALS 
The PRINCIPLE trial is an urgent public health study looking at potential drug treatments for the 
symptoms of COVID-19, in this case in older people in primary care. The trial is being led by the 
University of Oxford’s Nuffield Department of Primary Care Health Sciences, headed by the BRC’s 
Theme Lead for Multimorbidity, Professor Richard Hobbs. 
 
As part of a new UK trial, University of Oxford researchers will investigate whether administering the 
anti-inflammatory drug infliximab to patients with COVID-19 can prevent progression to respiratory 
failure or death. The multi-arm, multi-stage CATALYST Trial, is being led from Birmingham, in 
collaboration with the NIHR Oxford BRC and NIHR University College London (UCL) BRC. The overall 
aim is to guide the selection of new drug interventions for large Phase III trials in hospitalised 
patients with COVID-19 infection.  
 
Preliminary results of a clinical trial supported by NIHR Oxford BRC researchers have suggested that 
a new treatment for COVID-19 dramatically reduces the number of patients needing intensive care. 
The treatment, a protein called interferon beta, has been developed by the UK biotech company 
Synairgen and scientists at the University of Southampton. Interferon beta, produced naturally by 
the body when it gets a viral infection, is inhaled directly into the lungs of COVID-19 patients using a 
nebuliser, with the aim of reducing viral load and stimulating an immune response. The trial has 

Page 42

https://www.ox.ac.uk/news/2020-09-02-development-oxford-covid-19-vaccine-expands-us-phase-iii-clinical-trial
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ISIt0pC5Vio
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/breakthrough-in-recovery-covid-19-drug-treatment-trial/
https://www.remapcap.org/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/low-dose-corticosteroids-found-to-reduce-mortality-in-patients-with-severe-covid-19/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=llf3R6GqeIQ
https://www.phctrials.ox.ac.uk/principle-trial
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/oxford-leads-part-of-major-covid-19-drugs-trial/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/new-treatment-reduces-covid-19-patients-needing-intensive-care/


been supported by the NIHR Respiratory Translational Research Collaboration (R-TRC), led by the 
NIHR Oxford BRC’s Professor Ling-Pei Ho. 
 
The ATOMIC2 trial, which is being led by NIHR Oxford BRC researcher Dr Tim Hinks, is operating 
across 15 sites and aims to enrol 800 people with COVID-19 who have been assessed in hospital but 
considered well enough to be cared for at home. It is a clinical trial for the use of Azithromycin. As 
well as the BRC, the trial has received funding from the University of Oxford and Pfizer. It 
complements the RECOVERY and PRINCIPLE trials, which are testing Azithromycin in patients in 
hospital and in general practice respectively.  
 
5. PHOSP-COVID (investigating the long-term health impact of COVID-19) 
PHOSP-COVID is a major national research study investigating the long-term health impacts of 
COVID-19 on 10,000 hospitalised patients. Awarded £8.4 million jointly by UKRI and the NIHR and 
given urgent public health research status, it is led by the NIHR Leicester BRC with Oxford 
investigators at the forefront in providing expertise in multi-organ imaging, mental health and lung 
disease.  
 
PHOSP-COVID involves collaboration between OUH and Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust and 
between the NIHR Oxford BRC and the Oxford Health BRC. Oxford research leads include Professor 
Ling-Pei Ho, of the Oxford BRC’s Respiratory Theme, Professor Stefan Neubauer, the Oxford BRC 
Theme Lead for Imaging, and Professor John Geddes, Director of the NIHR Oxford Health BRC.  
 
A key part of PHOSP-COVID is the C-More study, led by Dr Betty Raman and Professor Stefan 
Neubauer, both from the University of Oxford’s Radcliffe Department of Medicine. This study, which 
aims to recruit more than 500 patients, will use Oxford’s state-of-the art imaging facilities to assess 
the long-term effects of COVID-19 infection, not only on the lungs but also on the heart, liver, kidney 
and brain.  
 
Oxford researchers from the BRC’s cardiovascular and imaging themes are playing a key role in the 
multi-centre COVID-HEART study, a partnership involving the NIHR and British Heart Foundation. 
The study aims to assess the demographic, multi-morbidity and genetic impact on cardiac 
involvement and its recovery 
 
6. OUH STAFF TESTING STUDY 
A study at OUH has revealed the different levels of risk faced by healthcare workers during the 
COVID-19 pandemic – the study, co-authored by a number of Oxford BRC and OUH researchers, was 
the first to comprehensively investigate all staff groups across an institution, combining data from 
both symptomatic and asymptomatic staff testing programmes.  
 
Almost 10,000 OUH staff were tested both for presence of the virus responsible for COVID-19 and 
antibodies to the virus, giving an accurate view of who has had coronavirus infection to date in the 
OUH workforce. The programme was able to: 
 

 Identify and isolate staff members who had the infection before they developed symptoms, 
preventing them passing infection on to other staff and patients 

 Identify in which areas of the hospital staff were at greatest risk 

 Identify which staff groups were at greatest risk 

 Record which staff have antibodies to the virus that causes COVID-19, enabling these staff to 
be monitored to understand if these antibodies provide immunity against repeat infections 

 

Page 43

https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/first-patient-recruited-for-key-drug-treatment-trial/?highlight=ATOMIC
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/new-national-study-into-the-long-term-health-impacts-of-covid-19/
https://www.stx.ox.ac.uk/article/betty-raman-leads-study-of-long-term-impact-of-covid-19
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/varying-risk-of-covid-19-to-health-workers-revealed/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/varying-risk-of-covid-19-to-health-workers-revealed/


Based on the findings of the testing, we implemented an infection prevention and control plan at 
OUH to limit transmission of the virus. 
 
7. CURIAL (using artificial intelligence to screen for COVID-19 in Emergency Departments) 
Oxford scientists specialising in infectious disease and clinical machine learning have developed an 
artificial intelligence test that can rapidly screen for COVID-19 in patients arriving in Emergency 
Departments. The initial findings of the ‘CURIAL’ AI test, which was supported by the Oxford BRC, 
appeared in a preprint paper.  
 
The test assesses data routinely collected during the first hour in Emergency Departments, such as 
blood tests and vital signs, to determine in near real time the chance of a patient testing positive for 
COVID-19.  
 
8. COVID and general practice 
Professor Trisha Greenhalgh, the NIHR Oxford BRC’s Theme Lead for Partnerships for Health, Wealth 
and Innovation, has received significant government funding for a new study to support GPs to 
deliver effective remote care to their patients during the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
She was awarded £750,000 from the Economic and Social Research Council (ESRC) for a new study 
entitled ‘Remote-by-Default Care in the COVID-19 Pandemic’ which aims to address the 
technological tools that GP surgeries use to interact with patients, the organisational and wider 
infrastructure changes that might be required to scale up and deliver better remote care, and the 
insights gained during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
9. The impact of COVID-19 on sleep 
Professor Colin Espie, of the Oxford BRC’s Neurological Conditions Theme, is the UK lead for an 
international study investigating the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on sleep and daily rhythms in 
adults. The International COVID-19 Sleep Study (ICOSS) is looking at changes in sleep quality in 
relation to social confinement such as a national lockdown or self-isolation, risk of exposure to the 
virus, and psychological symptoms such as anxiety, depression and post-traumatic stress. 
 
Dr Bruno Holthof 
Chief Executive Officer 
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

Page 44

https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/ai-test-identifies-covid-19-within-an-hour-in-emergency-departments/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/brc-theme-lead-to-study-remote-by-default-care-in-covid-19-pandemic/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/study-explores-effects-of-covid-19-on-sleep/


 

ROUTINE REFERRALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
Oxford University Hospitals (OUH) NHS Foundation Trust continued to receive two week wait cancer 
referrals and all other urgent referrals throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.   
 
We paused routine referrals to focus on the COVID-19 response, in line with national guidance from 
NHS England & NHS Improvement (NHSE&I), and we are now working closely with Oxfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) and with the wider BOB ICS (Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire 
and Berkshire West Integrated Care System (BOB ICS) to resume this activity. 
 
All OUH specialties remain open to receive referrals for patients with suspected cancer and referrals 
which are classified as urgent by primary care colleagues.  
 
As of 10 September, all OUH specialties have re-opened to routine referrals from GPs except in the 
following challenged specialties: 
 

 Maxillofacial (Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery) 

 ENT 

 Ophthalmology 

 Gynaecology (General and Endometriosis)  

 Clinical Neurophysiology  

 Bariatrics  
 
The Trust had significant waiting times in these challenged specialties before the COVID-19 
pandemic and demand for these services currently exceeds available capacity at OUH . 
 
This is why we are working closely with our NHS and independent sector partners so patients can be 
seen as soon as possible. 
 

2. ACTIONS BEING TAKEN 

 Maximising the use of peripheral clinic capacity because updated Infection Prevention and 
Control guidance has reduced the number of patients who can be seen safely in hospital 
outpatient clinics, due to the need to maintain safe social distancing in light of COVID-19 

 Planning for running outpatient clinics 7 days per week in some specialties 

 Increasing the use of independent sector outpatient capacity for challenged specialties  

 Increasing the number of patients who can have ‘virtual’ appointments eg video 
consultations, telephone appointments etc 

 Working closely with partners across BOB ICS to identify capacity in neighbouring acute 
hospitals  

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 10



3. COMMUNICATIONS WITH GPs 

 OUH and OCCG are holding a programme of webinars with GP colleagues to discuss issues 
and maintain open and timely communication between primary and secondary care 

 In addition, webinars are also taking place between OUH clinicians and GPs at specialty level 

 Regular updates have been provided through OCCG’s e-bulletin for GPs 
 

4. LOOKING AHEAD 
We understand the frustrations of primary care colleagues and patients that we have been able to 
open most, but not all, specialties at OUH to routine referrals. 
 
Patient and staff safety is of paramount importance to us and we want to ensure that, as we re-open 
services, we do so safely. 
 
OUH has made progress over recent weeks to re-open more services to receive routine referrals but 
we recognise there is more work still to be done within the Trust and with our BOB ICS partners.  
 

5. FURTHER INFORMATION 
More detailed information is available in papers that were discussed at our Trust Board and Council 
of Governors meetings on Wednesday 9 September – these are available on our website: 
 
Trust Board paper 
Council of Governors paper 
 
Dr Bruno Holthof 
Chief Executive Officer 
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

Page 46

https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/about/trust-board/2020/september/documents/TB2020.72-long-wait-patients.pdf
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/about/trust-board/2020/september/documents/TB2020.72-long-wait-patients.pdf
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/about/governors/meeting-papers/2020/september/documents/20-outpatient-referrals.pdf


 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 1 of 8 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Update  
Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee 
24th September 2020 

1 Annual Impact Report 2019-20 
We published our Annual Impact Report 2019-20 in June 2020 and this can be found 

on our website https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports/annual-reports/.   

Immediate impact our work achieved included: 

• Boater’s better access to health care - Healthwatch Oxfordshire boater’s 

access to health card is being distributed across the country by the Canal 

and Rivers Trust and Gypsy and Travellers Association. 

• OX4 on the spot – the Chair of Clinical Commissioning Group uses our OX4 

research to support their Report on Deprivation and Health Inequalities. 

• Smiling matters - Care Quality Commission (CQC) report supports 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire’s findings and recommendations including oral 

health checks for care home residents along with improved access to 

dentists. 

• Dental training in demand - Oxfordshire Community Dental Service 

experienced increased demand for its oral health care training for care 

home staff since our report into Oral Health in Care Homes. 

• Greening the garden - Healthwatch Oxfordshire visits to Vaughn Thomas 

Ward, Warneford Hospital in Headington, gave voice to patients’ pleas for 

more plants and furniture in their garden. Staff on Vaughan Thomas Ward 

did the 5K Gung ho and raised £2,700 and will invest in the garden. 

• What happened to my idea? - Listening to people at the Witney Adult 

Mental Health Service they wanted to know what happened to their 

suggestions. We told the staff this and so did the Service User Involvement 

workshops and now there is a ‘You said, we responded’ notice boards at 

each of the three hubs. 

• Night-time care - An Enter and View visit recommendation from 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire to a care home to ‘carry out a review of how care 

is provided during the night’ led to training and support for all staff 

provided by Oxfordshire Safeguarding Team; enhanced rates of pay for night 

shift to attract applicants and management presence at the start and end of 

the night shift. The result - staff are better supported and residents better 

cared for. 

• 64 recommendations were made following 19 Enter and View visits to 

mental health services, of which 26 were implemented within three months. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 13

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports/annual-reports/


 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 2 of 8 

2 Update on Healthwatch Oxfordshire 
HWO staff have continued to work from home and adapt ways of working and 

reaching out. We have completed a Covid-19 Risk assessment using the Health and 

Safety Executive guidelines.  The office reopened on 7th September with Covid-19 

secure adaptions and local Covid-19 Protocols in place together with flexible 

working patterns. 

Staff are now planning outreach activity in the community with a risk assessment 

including Covid-19 completed for each activity.  

2.1 Secondments 

In April and May a review of planned external activity (meetings, project 

development etc) together with an assessment of capacity within the staff team, 

meant that we were able to second staff time to two voluntary sector 

organisations that supported the community during the coronavirus pandemic.   

Secondments between May and end of June were to: 

Oxfordshire All In (OAI) a web-based mapping tool of community and voluntary 

organisations working with volunteers.   

Good Food Oxford to assist with research work that had already been started 

since Covid-19 investigating the location of all the food banks, and food larder and 

fridges in Oxfordshire. 

2.2 New members of the team 

Vicky Tilley, Communications and Luci Ashbourne, Enter & View joined us on 14th 

April and 2nd June respectively. 

The Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) Integrated Care 

System (ICS) Healthwatch Liaison Lead recruitment was completed when on 7th 

September when Catherine Williams joined us.  Catherine is employed and line 

managed by Healthwatch Oxfordshire.  In addition, we have a BOB Healthwatch 

Management Group comprising the five Healthwatch and BOB to agree and oversee 

the liaison lead work plan. 

The advertisement for our Community Outreach Worker BAME in Oxford City has 

gone out with a closing date of 12th October.  Interviews will be held on Thursday 

15th October.   Information can be found here 

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/about-us/work-for-us/ 

3 Listening to the public and taking action 
The following is an outline of what we have been doing since June 2020.  Working 

remotely had presented challenges to maintaining momentum and relationships in 

Page 48

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/about-us/work-for-us/


 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 3 of 8 

the community.  Greater challenge of developing new relationships is now being 

addressed within our Covid-19 Protocols and risk assessments. 

1. Promoting the ‘digital exclusion’ agenda.  Important for the systems not to 

forget that no everyone is digitally connected or responds or prefers to 

receive services, support, advice electronically.  Referenced in reports to 

Health and Wellbeing Board, Health Improvement Board, Health Overview 

Scrutiny Committee, press release and subsequent newspaper article, tv and 

radio interviews. 

2. Translation of Covid-19 / coronavirus information into community languages 

because we heard from new and emerging communities that their 

communities did not receive information in an accessible format.  Literature 

translated working with communities into 4 languages; Doctors of the World 

translations promoted by HWO and as a result also in system newsletters 

and on their websites. 

3. Facilitated the translation of food labels and distributed, via food parcels, 

300 to community homes by Oxford Community Action. 

4. Healthwatch Oxfordshire Covid-19 information sheet translated into 

community languages; translated and 700 copies distributed by community 

leaders. 

5. Creation of accessible and translated information on our website. 

6. Developing links with seldom heard communities via translations with 

African Families In the UK (AFIUK), Refugee Resource, Chinese Advice 

Centre, Chinese Older People’s community centre, Oxford Against Cutting, 

Sunrise Multicultural Centre, Banbury Masjid, and other groups. 

7. Responded to requests from health and local authorities for information to 

be translated.  As a result, we initiated an investigation into access to 

translated information from local authorities and health services. 

8. Supporting Oxford Community Action to access food support to their 

communities – they now operate a weekly food distribution point in Hurst 

Street supported by SOFEA, Oxford Mutual Aid, Good Food Oxford and 

Oxford City Council. 

9. Extensive use of Facebook to reach seldom heard communities. 

10. Support to Healthwatch Oxfordshire Parent Ambassador on Children’s Trust 

resulting in mapping of parent support groups across Oxfordshire – to be 

completed end September. 

11. Responded to concerns from local community in Oxford City to Public Health 

Oxfordshire image portrayed in Men’s Health poster on bus shelters.  Poster 

removed. 

12. Ongoing update and improvement of website.  Launch of new site and 

Feedback site due in September. 

13. Invited to attend system Task & Finish Group for new Covid-19 services 

model re Primary Care.  

Page 49



 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 4 of 8 

4 Reports published  
All reports are available online www.healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports  

Published our Mental Health Report, including the responses from Oxford Health 

NHS Foundation Trust and Oxfordshire Mental Health Partnership. 

 

Published a report on ‘Listening to Care Homes during Covid-19’.  Healthwatch 

Oxfordshire was invited to attend the system Bronze Cell Care Homes to present 

the report.  All that was reported on was accepted and the report will continue to 

influence the support to care homes from the County Council and Health partners.  

The report was received by used by the CQC for Government Social Care Covid 

Task Force group, and Healthwatch England, plus coverage on BBC Radio Oxford, 

BBC South Today and Oxford Mail. 

 

Published two reports on primary care – PPGs and Practice Managers. 

Patient Participation Group activity during Covid-19. During May 2020 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire contacted all Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) in 

Oxfordshire to hear how the Covid-19 pandemic had impacted on their activity.  

They were asked to complete a simple online survey.  Findings include: 

• Of the 71 PPGs contacted 18 completed the online survey. Only five of the 

PPGs were still meeting. 

• In Banbury PPGs were meeting in their Primary Care Network.   

• Most PPGs (10) were still in touch with their surgery using email, telephone, 

and in Bicester all three practices and PPGs met via Zoom. 

• PPGs were proud of what they had achieved including: 

o GPs have listened to them and made changes to their website and  

produced  

o Newsletters for their patients explaining Covid-19. 

o Getting involved in local community action around support for 

vulnerable patients during the pandemic. 

o Writing regularly in the parish newsletters to help support and 

communicate with patients. 

Whilst it was disappointing that so few PPGs responded, the snapshot survey 

did give us some insight into how PPGs and practices responded during the 

pandemic. 

In July we contacted all GP Practice Managers to find out how the surgery 

practices had changed during the pandemic and what plans they had for 

future changes or returning to normal.  Again, the response was low with 

only 14 practices responding.  The major changes in service included: 

• They no longer offered walk in surgeries 

Page 50

http://www.healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports


 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 5 of 8 

• Patients are triaged over the phone and the best way to consult with 

them is discussed including: 

o be it by text  

o sending photographs  

o email 

o tele-video consultation  

o or a face to face appointment where deemed necessary. 

• Another practice manager explained that all patients contacted the practice 

using e-consult, where patients cannot complete this themselves, they could 

call the practice and reception staff would offer support to complete the form.  

Further research shows that this is the only surgery that has only online booking 

and consultation, others continue to offer telephone booking and consultations. 

 

In relation to the earlier research with PPGs 10 of the 14 responses identified a 

challenge to continue to work with their PPGs due to members isolating.  They had 

generally moved from face to face meetings to email, phone and occasional virtual 

meetings. 

The two reports are to be taken to the October Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning 

Committee together with the concerns we are hearing about: 

• Changes in accessing GP services – the challenges for some patients, and the 

fear that this might be permanent 

• The reluctance for some GPs to interact with their PPGs 

• Outcomes of meeting with OCCG on Wednesday 16th September reference 

the issues raised by Andy McLellan at Health Improvement Board. These 

were the need for clear communication from the system to communities and 

patients. Concern about PPPG’s, that some PPGs ‘collapsed’ and people are 

worried, frustrated about ‘what’s happening’ e.g impact, access to services, 

public don’t know what’s happening etc. 

 

In August we published our first report on ‘Social Care in Oxfordshire – how did 

local people experience the councils 2018 change in contributions policy?’.  

The report contains the council’s response to our recommendations.  We are now 

finalising the report on the second part of this project- listening to people’s ideas 

for improving communication by the council about financial contributions.  When 

the second report is available, in October, we will publicise both together. 

 

In September we reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board, Health Improvement 

Board, and Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee with a focus on what we 

have heard about people’s experiences of accessing services during Covid-19. 

 

Page 51



 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 6 of 8 

The Pharmacy Experience report written by Oxford Brookes University is an 

analysis of the 300 responses we had from our online survey asking people for their 

experiences of accessing pharmacy services.  The conclusions are: 

• Participants either lived within 1 mile of their local pharmacy (n-49%), or 1-5 

miles from their local pharmacy (n=45%), and most travelled to the pharmacy 

by car or by walking.  Just over half of participants said they sometimes get 

medical advice from the pharmacist, mainly for minor ailments, medication 

interactions, and the flu jab, while a third said they don’t use the pharmacy to 

seek medical advice.  Some reported a lack of trust towards pharmacies or 

reported pharmacists were too busy or not available, which may have 

influenced their decision whether or not to seek medical advice from their 

pharmacists. 

 

• Despite increased technology for ordering repeat prescriptions and the onset of 

pharmacy delivery services, most people (75%) collected their prescriptions 

from the pharmacy, with only 9% having their prescriptions delivered. 

 

• The practical issues at the pharmacy included long delays, long queues, 

receiving the wrong medication or shortages of medicine supplies. Those with 

chronic conditions or caregiver duties sometimes found it difficult to access 

their prescriptions, with a few unsure how to organise home delivery of their 

prescription.  Furthermore, some found parking at the pharmacy difficult, while 

others reported the limited opening hours of pharmacy restrictive 

 

• The start of the pandemic in the UK led to issues complying to the social 

distancing regulations within the pharmacy despite tight regulations of only two 

in the pharmacy at any one time.  Participants reported anxiety travelling to 

the pharmacy to pick up their prescriptions and increased queues and delays 

when at the pharmacy.  Others reported the pharmacist stepping up to the 

challenge of COVID 19, recognising patients’ needs and organising deliveries to 

the most vulnerable. 

We continued to promote the survey asking for experience during Covid-19 and 

Oxford Brookes are analysing these results with a report expected in October.  This 

will give us information about how accessing pharmacy during the coronavirus 

pandemic has changed for people. 

5 Current activity 
Despite challenges of face to face activity, we have continued to reach out to local 

groups, system meetings, and to raise awareness of Oxfordshire Wellbeing 

Network, and to maintain constant flow of trustworthy and accessible information. 

Page 52



 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 7 of 8 

We are continuing to build our work with communities facing inequalities in 

health. 

 

Will be continuing to focus on social care this year, developing different ways to 

make sure we can hear from a wide cross section of individuals.  Our focus on 

social care and launched two surveys which are currently live:  

➢ On experience of unpaid carers looking after family members or friends in their 

home https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/Unpaidcarers/  

➢ On experience of people employed in home care support 

https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/Paidcarers/  

 

Continued joint work with Oxford Community Action to design and distribute a 

survey focused on views of community wellbeing-working through community 

champions (Somali, East African, Palestinian, Sudanese, Syrian, East Timorese and 

others) within new and emerging communities in Oxford. We relaunched the survey 

in July and distributed via online and food parcels. We have had 137 responses to 

date and will be producing and disseminating a report together shortly. 

 

Continued to gather information on resident’s health and care services via our 

Feedback Centre, and online forms with focus on Covid 

6 What we have been hearing 

6.1 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Feedback Centre 

feedback: 27 reviews since June-Sep. including 11 about GP services. Nothing 

particular to note. 

Getting an appointment seems to be a bit hit and miss. During the pandemic 

they've suspended the online booking system which is inconvenient. When you ring 

you have to listen to a long explanation of the new processes and the recorded 

message tries to make you use the e-booking system, which isn't always 

convenient or appropriate. 

My husband is severely handicapped by deafness. The doctor was very patient and 

made sure my husband followed what he was saying, not easy when you are 

wearing a mask. 

Now the eConsult service is available much straight forward in sorting out any 

problems 

6.2 Covid-19 feedback form on Healthwatch Oxfordshire website 

(42 comments): 

➢ Praise for treatment and care from NHS 

➢ What support will be in place for Covid ‘longhaulers’ over long recovery 

process? E.g. self-help groups 

Page 53

https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/Unpaidcarers/
https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/Paidcarers/


 
Your voice on health and social care 

 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  September 2020
 Page 8 of 8 

➢ Mix of views from appointments being easier to access with phone and 

virtual, to being more difficult to access 

➢ Impact of delays on routine referrals, services and treatment e.g. physio, 

dentistry, endoscopy, routine operations 

➢ Comments on concerns about limited follow up care post-surgery 

 

 

Page 54



1 
 

Oxfordshire Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
24th September 2020 

 
Chairman’s Report 

 

 
1.0 Population Health and Care Needs Assessment in OX12 
 
1.1 A set of recommendations were tabled at HOSC’s meeting on the 25th of June 2020. 

The recommendations were proposed by the Committee’s Task and Finish Group 
regarding the roll out of the Population Health and Care Assessment Framework in 
the OX12 area.   
 

1.2 HOSC accepted the recommendations and it was agreed that a letter be sent to the 
responsible authorities; Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and Oxford 
Health Foundation Trust to formally outline those recommendations. A copy of this 
letter is contained within Appendix 1.   
 

1.3 A reply to HOSC’s letter was received and this is contained within Appendix 2. 

 

2.0 Co-opted members   
 
2.1 In addition to Councillors, the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(HOSC) includes in its membership up to three non-voting co-opted members. Co-
opted members are appointed because of the valuable personal contribution they 
make to the work of the committee. 
 

2.2 Co-opted members normally serve for a period of two years and may serve for one 
further consecutive period of two years before reapplying. In line with this, a review 
of the terms of the co-opted members of the committee was due and therefore 
undertaken in July 2020. An advertisement, application shortlisting and interview 
process then followed for co-opted members. 
 

2.3 There were some excellent candidates and following shortlisting, four people were 
interviewed. An offer was made to join the committee immediately to Mrs Jean 
Bradlow. 

 
3.0 Committee briefings and communication 
 
3.1 The committee received the following written briefings since its meeting in June 

2020. These are in the Appendices of this report and are on:  
 

Appendix Name From Received 

3 Weekly briefings on COVID-19 System-wide 
communication 

Weekly  

4 BOB ICS Bulletin (July) ICS 08/07/20 

5 Windrush Surgery- Bradley Arcade OCCG 23/07/20 

6 Reopening outpatients OCCG 24/07/20 

Page 55

Agenda Item 14



2 
 

3.2 In addition to the above letters received by the committee, a letter was sent from 
the Chairman on behalf of HOSC to the Chief Executive of Oxford University 
Hospitals Foundation Trust on maternity patient’s partners. This was sent on the 
14th of September and is included in Appendix 7.  

 
 

Page 56



 

 

Dr James Kent, Accountable Officer 
and Executive ICS Lead, 
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and 
Berkshire West ICS.  
 
Dr Nick Broughton, Chief Executive,  
Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust  
(by email) 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Dr Kent and Dr Broughton 
 
Re: OX12 Task and Finish Group recommendations  
 
Following the meeting of the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC) on 25th June, committee members agreed a set of recommendations put forward 
by members of the OX12 Task and Finish Group, relating to the OX12 project. The 
committee fully acknowledges that a number of workstreams have had to be paused in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The timing of the pandemic was both unforeseeable 
and unfortunate. A lot of time and resource has been invested in this project, both from the 
local stakeholders and system partners. Additionally a level of expectation has been set 
within the OX12 community that they will see a positive evolution of their health and care 
services, whatever form that may take. This is also set against a backdrop of Wantage 
Community Hospital having been temporarily closed to inpatients in July 2016. We are now 
at the fourth anniversary of that closure, a significant period of time to be considered 
temporary. As we move into a phase of COVID-19 recovery as a system, it is imperative 
that this project be resumed, with the appropriate engagement and consultation having 
taken place.  
 
This project was a pilot exercise for the Health and Care Needs Framework and whilst there 
were inevitable delays associated with that, which HOSC initially supported to enable a 
thorough review to take place, subsequent delays associated with the pre-election period 
were not supported. I reiterate my comment from the meeting itself, that if these projects 
take up to two years each to complete and only one can take place at a time, then it could 
take at least a decade to roll this out across the whole county.  
 
HOSC understands the need to ensure the consultation and engagement takes place in a 
safe and secure manner, and that this project will need to fall into a programme of recovery. 
However it is important that this is afforded a priority within that programme. I would like to 
reiterate the commitment from HOSC and the OX12 Task and Finish Group to work 
alongside health system partners, to help ensure the project delivers effective outcomes for 
not only the residents of the OX12 locality, but also valuable learning is captured and 
understood ready for the framework to be utilised in other localities.  
 
The OX12 Task and Finish Group presented the following recommendations to HOSC for 
endorsement and onward recommendation to system partners. Members of HOSC agreed 
the recommendations as follows:  
 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee   
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 
 
Contact: Martin Dyson, Policy Officer 
Direct Line: 07393 001252 
Email: 
martin.dyson@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Date: 23rd July 2020 

Page 57



 
 

2 
 

1. The OX12 project re-starts by the 15th September 2020 with engagement from System 
Partners. The group accepts that this is subject to the continuing downward trajectory 
in the county COVID-19 cases. Although the Task & Finish group accepts the 
continuing need to focus on the COVID-19 response, OX12 must be a top priority for 
non-COVID project work. 
 

2. That the engagement is characterized by enthusiasm, active involvement and real 
partnership involving all stakeholders. Immediately identified areas of work include: 
a. Continue capital works to address Legionella in Wantage Community Hospital. 
b. A planned return of maternity and physiotherapy services to Wantage Hospital by 

15th September 2020.  
c. Fully addressing the recommendations and comments of the T&F group. (these 

have been passed onto the Health and Wellbeing Board for a response)  
 

3. That the project should specifically address the following issues: 
a. How the plans for OX12 fit into a county-wide policy including all community 

hospitals 
b. How healthcare will dovetail with social care, which was advocated. 
c. How Primary Care Networks will work and what they will do (in some detail), for 

example increasing home care, the role of medical support staff etc as a result of 
the projected increased staff as a result of the BOB ICS. 

d. How the projected 35-36% population increase will affect health provision, 
e. How staff changes (likely shortage of GPs, nurses and lower paid staff salaries) 

affect the plan 
f. Whether funding issues exist in terms of any financial constraints on what is 

planned as the optimal situation for OX12. 
 
The OX12 Task and Finish Group raised the following recommendations specifically for 
consideration of the committee:    
 

4. The Committee takes the view that the COVID-19 pandemic has put an interval in the 
timeline for the project but has not changed the substance of what was discussed and 
agreed at the HOSC meeting.  However, we note that at the last HOSC meeting it is 
recorded in the minutes that the community hospital should fully re-open by September 
2020. We suggest this date be postponed to 1st January 2021. In the meantime the 
Task and Finish Group believes the Wantage Community Hospital is valuable to the 
response of COVID-19, the recovery and post COVID-19 phases and this should be 
kept under active consideration.  

 
5. That the JHOSC should consider that, if the system partners are unable or unwilling to 

engage on this basis, it should consider: 
a. That the interim report from the system partners is rejected. 
b. Other recommendations which will be submitted by the T&F group to the 

September JHOSC meeting. 
 
In response to the above, it was discussed at HOSC and understood by all parties that this 
was indeed a pause on the project and not a cancellation. Consideration will be given to 
recommendation 5 at a future HOSC meeting, once the status of the project becomes 
clearer. We note in the CCG update paper the commitment to agree a new timeline with 
HOSC and would strongly encourage this at the earliest opportunity.  

Page 58



 
 

3 
 

 
I would invite you to please consider the recommendations and respond accordingly.  

 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 

 
 
Cllr Arash Fatemian  
Chairman Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
27 August 2020 
 
 
Dear Councillor Fatemian 

Thank you for your letter of 23 July 2020 outlining some recommendations from HOSC 
about the OX12 project for us to consider.   

Your concern about the considerable length of time it has taken to resolve the temporary 
closure of the inpatient beds in Wantage Community Hospital and to progress the OX12 
project is understandable and we share the Committee’s desire to resolve this in a timely 
way. We note that during this period, residents of OX12 requiring community 
rehabilitation have continued to receive care and support at other Oxfordshire facilities or 
in their usual place of residence. 

The impact of COVID-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted on a wide range of activities, some of which were 
paused as part of the Level 4 pandemic response, as required by NHS England. This 
included the follow-on work (particularly relating to the future of the inpatient beds at the 
community hospital) to the application of the Oxfordshire Population Health Framework in 
OX12, following the presentation of the final report to the Health and Wellbeing Board in 
January 2020 and to HOSC in February 2020 (covering paper and full report available 
here). The Infection Prevention and Control and social distancing measures to protect 
vulnerable people during the first phase of the pandemic also required the temporary 
suspension of midwifery and musculoskeletal services at Wantage Community Hospital. 

We are therefore pleased to confirm: 

• The replacement of the water systems at Wantage Community Hospital has now 
been completed and the Legionella risk has been removed from the site 

• As Councillors will be aware we are required to deliver our services in buildings 
that meet Health and Safety requirements for our patients and staff and this has 

 
Councillor Arash Fatemian 
Chair Oxfordshire Joint HOSC 
 
By email: 
arashAli.Fatemian@oxfordshire.gov.uk  

Jubilee House 
5510 John Smith Drive 

Oxford Business Park South 
Cowley 
Oxford 

OX4 2LH 
 

Telephone: 01865 336800 
Email: oxon.gpc@nhs.net  

 

Page 61

https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=897&MId=5628
mailto:arashAli.Fatemian@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:oxon.gpc@nhs.net


significant implications for the design and utilisation of our estate.  We have 
reviewed the Estate to enable the service providers (OUH and Healthshare) to 
resume maternity and MSK physiotherapy services at Wantage Community 
Hospital.  This has identified that further work is required to ensure that the MLU 
can operate with facilities designed to both ensure the privacy and dignity of 
women (such as en-suite facilities), and compliance with Infection Prevention 
(such as the ability to physically distance and CQC compliant fabric of the 
building).  We are in the process of understanding the degree of work and costs 
this would entail so at this stage cannot confirm when this service will return.   
MSK services are planning for a September return but this is contingent on them 
being able to access the space they require.  

• Wantage Community Hospital will play a number of important roles in supporting 
the recovery of patients post-COVID, enabling the resumption of outpatient clinics 
and community-based services for its local population. 
 

During the COVID-19 pandemic and recovery phases we have been able to deliver a 
significant reduction in delayed transfers of care, reducing the requirement for general 
community hospital beds. Additional community inpatient beds are not required to 
support the COVID response or recovery at this time and the inpatient beds at Wantage 
Community Hospital will need to remain temporarily closed to ensure the resilient staffing 
of other critical services as we approach winter and a possible “second wave”. We will, of 
course, keep this under review as we progress the winter response. 

Progressing the OX12 project and community services strategy 

As recently appointed Chief Executives in the Oxfordshire system, our understanding is 
that the purpose of the OX12 project was twofold: to understand the longstanding 
concerns about the temporary closure of the Wantage inpatient beds and the 
development of future services in the context of local population need; and to test and 
refine a new Population Health Framework.  

The Framework is designed to take account of a wide range of data and experience, and 
to approach a conversation with local communities with the benefit of local data and 
national comparators. This in turn should ensure that any proposed changes to services 
relate to current and future population need. 

We have heard from colleagues that the engagement of residents living in and around 
OX12 was exceptional, as was the support of primary care, social care, county and 
district councils, acute and community health services and third sector partners. During 
the project the value of the Community Hospital as a locally accessible and cherished 
healthcare facility was reaffirmed, both for the services it currently offers and for the 
potential to develop further the offer to local residents in the future.  

As leaders of NHS healthcare organisations, it is incumbent upon us to take account of 
evidence-based recommendations when formulating sustainable plans to improve the 
health and care of our population. Our understanding is that the findings of the project 
indicated that the role of community hospital inpatient beds in the local rehabilitation 
pathways has reduced during the period of time the Wantage beds have been closed 

Page 62



and that the inpatient requirements of OX12 residents are currently being met at other 
community hospitals and in their own homes.  

This pattern of reducing demand for general community inpatient beds, with increased 
care and rehabilitation provided in the home is in keeping with national trends and the 
latest clinical models, which support the delivery of care and rehabilitation in the person’s 
usual living environment when this is safe and appropriate. This approach leads to 
greater independence, improved health and wellbeing outcomes and is preferred by the 
majority of patients. 

Following these findings, OCCG and OHFT committed to progressing work specifically in 
relation to the inpatient bed services available to residents in OX12. An outline plan was 
shared with HOSC at its meeting in February 2020 and the committee made several 
suggestions then on scope and timescales.  

As highlighted in your letter, the pandemic has unfortunately interrupted this plan. We 
recognise, however, the need to progress this important work in a timely manner, while 
recognising the considerable ongoing burdens arising from COVID-19, and propose the 
following: 

1. With respect to the application of the Framework, the OX12 Stakeholder Group 
and the HOSC Task and Finish Group have offered extremely helpful feedback 
which will benefit future project planning and application. We agree with your 
observation that it would take a long time if the piloted methodology were to be 
rolled out across the County in the same way. This indicates to us that we need to 
consider how we adapt this and develop a pragmatic approach to enable 
decisions to be taken within a reasonable time period. 

2. Following the appointment of new Executive roles to its Board, Oxford Health is 
undertaking a county-wide strategic review of its primary and community care 
services, including the role of its rehabilitation pathways and inpatient beds in 
supporting recovery (in the context of ICS, regional and national provision). This 
will inform the development of a refreshed community services strategy for the 
Trust. We would greatly welcome the involvement of HOSC members in this work, 
to help ensure that it progresses in a timely way and reflects local needs. We have 
identified this work as a priority and our aim is to have a strategy prepared for 
Board and stakeholder review by the end of December 2020 (subject to COVID-
19). 

3. NHSE guidance issued on 28.03.20 (Reducing burden and releasing capacity at 
NHS providers and commissioners to manage the COVID-19 pandemic) stated 
that “No new public consultations would be expected except in cases to support 
COVID-19 or build agreed new facilities”.  This was early in the response to the 
pandemic and now we need to consider where this work sits in our overall 
priorities for restoration and recovery.  At the moment we are unable to prioritise 
OX12 consultation work on the inpatient beds in the short term (as the beds are 
not required to support the COVID response or recovery) and therefore will not be 
able to restart the project in September.  We will, however, be extending our new 
Home First discharge-to-assess pathway (combined health and social care), to 

Page 63



support OX12 residents to be taken home so their needs can be assessed in their 
familiar surroundings.   

4. The outputs of the above work will lead to a better understanding of the relative 
benefits and model for home-based reablement and rehabilitation, in keeping with 
your recommendation 3. This will help decision-makers in the system to determine 
the best future arrangements for the inpatient beds at Wantage Community 
Hospital and inform the public consultation should the recommendation be to 
close the beds, with particular focus on how the therapeutic functions would be 
provided for local residents.  

 

We hope that this information provides a helpful response to the points in your letter and 
that we can work together to develop a sustainable future for our community services, to 
the benefit of the Oxfordshire population. 

Yours sincerely 

 
 

Dr James Kent 
Accountable Officer, Oxfordshire CCG 

Dr Nick Broughton 
Chief Executive, Oxford Health NHS FT 

    
 

Page 64



1 
2020.06.23 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

Oxfordshire NHS & Local Authorities Stakeholder Briefing: 
COVID-19 
23 June 2020 
 
Oxfordshire health and local authority partners continue to work together to provide an 
effective and sustained response to COVID-19. This week’s stakeholder briefing includes 
updates on the following: 

• Change of Chief Executive at Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust 
• Addressing health inequalities in the wake of COVID 
• Supporting Oxfordshire’s business community  
• Plasma Clinical Trial 
• Learning Disabilities Week 
• Helping families cope with COVID: Co-SPACE and Co-SPYCE key findings 
• Shape Oxford Health’s digital future 
• RECOVERY trial breakthrough 
• F1 technology helps create aerosol shield to protect COVID-19 clinicians 
• Patients and visitors to hospitals must now wear face coverings 
• Saying thank you to the children of OUH staff 

 
Change of Chief Executive at Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust  
Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust (OHFT) saw one era ending and new one starting as 
Stuart Bell CBE retired and Dr Nick Broughton started as chief executive of Oxford Health, 
formally taking on the role on 15 June. Nick brings a wealth of experience to Oxford Health, 
having joined the Trust from Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust, where he led the 
organisation from a CQC rating of ‘Requires Improvement’ in 2017 to ‘Good’ in January 
2020.  
Prior to that Nick was chief executive of Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. As a 
consultant psychiatrist for more than 20 years, specialising in forensic psychiatry, he has 
held medical and clinical director roles, and a variety of other managerial positions, including 
as a director of Imperial College Healthcare Partners. He obtained his medical degree from 
Cambridge and completed his training at St. Thomas’ Hospital, London. 
Stuart’s 38-year NHS career came to a close on June 12 with a special ceremony led by 
Trust chair David Walker.  
Addressing health inequalities in the wake of COVID 

Organisations across Oxfordshire are being asked to come together by the County Council’s 
Director of Public Health to intensify efforts to help the most deprived areas of the county in 
the wake of COVID-19. Oxfordshire may be one of the most affluent counties in the UK, but 
it includes 10 of the most deprived wards in the whole of England. The inequalities that exist 
in the county, the impact they have on the health and wellbeing of residents and the need for 
action, are the focus of the Director of Public Health’s annual report. Watch Ansaf Azhar 
introduce his report in this short video.  
Raising awareness of scams 
Residents have been warned to be on their guard against criminals and scammers exploiting 
the coronavirus situation. As part of Scams Awareness Fortnight (15-28 June), 
Oxfordshire County Council’s Trading Standards have been advising residents how to avoid 
falling victim to scams targeting people via emails, text messages and on the doorstep. 
Scams which Trading Standards are aware of include:  

Page 65

https://www.oxfordhealth.nhs.uk/news/end-of-an-era-as-stuart-bell-cbe-retires/
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/social-and-health-care/public-health-and-wellbeing/public-health-annual-report
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=f1OgcxRixzE&t=10s
https://news.oxfordshire.gov.uk/oxfordshire-residents-warned-against-coronavirus-scams/


2 
2020.06.23 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

• People offering miracle cures or vaccines for coronavirus. 
• People impersonating healthcare workers, claiming to be offering ‘home testing’ for 

coronavirus  
• Mobile phone applications that claim to give updates on the virus, but instead lock 

your phone and demand a ransom. 
Anyone who thinks they have may have been scammed should report it to Action Fraud on 
0300 123 2040.  
Supporting Oxfordshire’s business community  
Over 900 applications have been received for the COVID-19 Business Resilience Fund, set 
up by Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP). The scheme, which closed on 5 
June, provides small businesses and sole traders, including charities and social enterprises, 
with revenue grants of up to £5,000 or capital grants of up to £10,000. In total, £250,000 has 
been made available for revenue grants and £500,000 for capital grants.  
Plasma Clinical Trial 
The NHS is collecting blood plasma from patients who have recovered from COVID-19 to 
help with national clinical trials. People are being encouraged to donate plasma 
(convalescent plasma) if you have recovered from a confirmed case of coronavirus or had 
symptoms. One of the sites where you are able to do this is at the Oxford Blood Donor 
Centre at John Radcliffe Hospital. In most cases they also collect blood and platelets at 
these venues so there are limited appointments for plasma donors each day. This means 
you cannot give plasma without an appointment. Those who have recovered from COVID-19 
and are interested in donating plasma are able to complete this online form.  
Learning Disabilities Week 
Oxford Health led on systems communications to support Learning Disabilities Week (15-21 
June). A story shared with partners and stakeholders showcases some of the key support 
available for people with LD, including a variety of easy read material which is available for 
GPs and all health professionals to share.  
Helping families cope with COVID: Co-SPACE and Co-SPYCE key findings 
The Co-SPACE and Co-SPYCE studies led by Professor Cathy Creswell are tracking how 
families are coping during the COVID-19 crisis. The research is being shared with 
organisations who can use it to provide families with the support they need. Both CO-
SPACE and CO-SPYCE have recently published updates on their key findings. Previous 
updates and a webinar series on supporting families during lockdown are also available. CO-
SPACE is still recruiting families to take part here.  
Shape Oxford Health’s digital future 
Oxford Health is calling all patients, carers and service users to help shape the Trust’s digital 
strategy. By taking part in a short survey everyone can have their say in the future digital 
options for local healthcare. The survey is published online and also distributed to all public 
and patient Foundation Trust members. 
RECOVERY trial breakthrough 
The scale and scope of COVID-19 related research activity taking place in Oxford 
demonstrates not only the University of Oxford’s status as a global centre for research but 
also the benefits to patients of the strategic partnership between the NHS and the university.  
Oxfordshire patients with COVID-19 were among the first to be recruited to a major new 
clinical trial to test potential drug treatments. The Randomised Evaluation of COVID-19 
Therapy (RECOVERY) trial, led by researchers from the University of Oxford, is the largest 
of its kind in the world.  

Page 66

https://www.nhsbt.nhs.uk/how-you-can-help/convalescent-plasma-clinical-trial/
https://www.nhsbt.nhs.uk/how-you-can-help/convalescent-plasma-clinical-trial/
http://www.oxfordhealth.nhs.uk/news/learning-disability-awareness-week-15-21-june/
https://emergingminds.org.uk/co-space-study-4th-update/
https://emergingminds.org.uk/co-space-study-4th-update/
https://emergingminds.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Co-SPYCE-report_1_Final.pdf
https://emergingminds.org.uk/co-space-study-supporting-parents-adolescents-and-children-during-epidemics/
https://emergingminds.org.uk/co-space-study-supporting-parents-adolescents-and-children-during-epidemics/
https://emergingminds.org.uk/emerging-minds-covid-19-webinar-series/
https://oxfordxpsy.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_3VO130LTKOcloMd
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=m8iadaQqc0mwSOaQO0aotqdK2yfgk15DkKA1n72Tkg1UOEhRVVFCVDJSWlFITk40MFRaSFVIVklQMi4u
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1210
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1210
https://www.recoverytrial.net/
https://www.recoverytrial.net/


3 
2020.06.23 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

Data is regularly reviewed so that any effective treatment can be identified quickly and made 
available to all patients. Last week the researchers announced that dexamethasone (a 
steroid treatment which was among the drugs being tested) reduces death by up to one third 
in hospitalised patients with severe respiratory complications of COVID-19. Dexamethasone 
is the first drug to reduce mortality from COVID-19 and is a ground breaking development in 
the fight against the disease. The drug is also inexpensive and widely available.  
F1 technology helps create aerosol shield to protect COVID-19 clinicians 
A new type of aerosol shield designed by motor racing engineers to improve the treatment of 
COVID-19 patients and the safety of frontline clinical staff has been approved for use at 
Oxford University Hospitals (OUH) NHS Foundation Trust. 
The new ‘Oxford Box’ is designed to keep frontline staff safe during intubation procedures 
when a tube is inserted into a patient's body, for example when an artificial ventilation tube is 
inserted into the trachea to help a patient breathe.  
The Renault DP World Formula 1 Team and the University of Oxford’s Oxford Simulation, 
Teaching & Research (OxSTaR) Centre played significant roles in its development. After 
extensive trials at OxSTaR and the training of key clinical staff, OUH has approved the use 
of the Oxford Box across its four hospitals in Oxford and Banbury. 
The Oxford Box is unique because it is completely collapsible, easy to stow away and is 
much easier to clean than other similar devices being developed, which helps enormously 
with infection control. It is believed that the Oxford Box is the best aerosol shield available; it 
is expected to be used beyond the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Patients and visitors to hospitals must now wear face coverings 
In line with new Government guidance, all patients and visitors to NHS hospitals in 
Oxfordshire must now wear face coverings; this rule came into effect on 15 June. Patients 
and visitors may wear a face mask if they choose, but a face covering is sufficient. 
Also from 15 June, all staff working in NHS hospitals must wear face masks (not face 
coverings) unless they are in ‘COVID secure’ areas where the infection risk is low. 
This is an additional measure to help keep everyone safe during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
The most important thing everyone can do is to continue to observe social distancing and 
maintain good hand hygiene – as well as wearing a face covering when in a hospital. 
Saying thank you to the children of OUH staff 
The OUH’s Chief Executive Officer sent a personal message to all OUH staff in which he 
acknowledged how tough things have been for everyone during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
and the impact this can have on family life. 
He wrote a thank you letter which staff members could print off and add in the name (s) of 
their child/children – it was made available to download and print off from the Oxford 
Hospitals Charity website.  
Frequency and further information: 
For the time being we will be sharing an update fortnightly; this may change as we review 
communications for the COVID-19 response and recovery phase of the pandemic. 
Please email occg.media-team@nhs.net with any queries and we will endeavour to get back 
to you. 
 

Page 67

https://www.theoxfordbox.com/
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1298
https://www.hospitalcharity.co.uk/ouhchildren
https://www.hospitalcharity.co.uk/ouhchildren
mailto:occg.media-team@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
2020.07.07 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

Oxfordshire NHS & Local Authorities Stakeholder Briefing: 
COVID-19 

7 July 2020 

 

Oxfordshire health and local authority partners continue to work together to provide an 
effective and sustained response to COVID-19. This week’s stakeholder briefing includes 
updates on the following: 

 COVID-19 survivor says a ‘huge thank you’ to the staff who saved her life 

 Local outbreak control plan and #stopthespread campaign 

 Supporting the safe easing of lockdown in town centres 

 Letter to businesses from Oxfordshire’s Public Health Director 

 Community Assessment, Liaison and Monitoring clinics (CALM) Phase 2: recovery 
and restoration 

 GP practices 

 Happy Birthday NHS 

 ‘Virtual’ public talks by Oxford’s COVID-19 research pioneers 

 BMA Council Chair praises research into COVID-19 staff testing at OUH 

 Changes to hospital visiting arrangements  

 Face masks and face coverings – a reminder 

 Face masks – making sure they are safe and legal 

 Letters to a Little One 

 Creating with Care programme 
 

COVID-19 survivor says a ‘huge thank you’ to the staff who saved her life 

A 77-year-old patient who spent 77 days in intensive care with COVID-19 at the John 
Radcliffe Hospital has praised the staff who cared for her as she continues her remarkable 
recovery. Jenny Eadon spent 11 weeks on the Intensive Care Unit at the JR as she battled 
severe complications as a result of COVID-19, including kidney failure, heart issues, 
pulmonary embolism, and a stroke. 

Thankfully, Jenny's condition improved day-to-day and she has since been discharged to 
Abingdon Community Hospital, which is run by Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust, to 
continue her recovery. Jenny left the ICU to an emotional 'clap out' by many of the staff who 
had cared for her. 

Local outbreak control plan and #stopthespread campaign 

As national lockdown is gradually eased, local plans have been developed by local 
authorities in partnership with the NHS and Public Health England to reduce the spread of 
infection and manage local outbreaks. This combined effort aims to minimise the risk of a 
second wave anywhere across England.  

Oxfordshire’s local outbreak control plan is designed to help people resume a way of life 
during COVID-19 that is safe, protects our health and care systems, and supports our local 
economy. It has been developed by Oxfordshire County Council’s Public Health team, 
working with colleagues from the city and district councils, Oxford Health NHS Foundation 
Trust (Oxford Health), Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (OUH), 
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG), Public Health England (PHE) and 
Thames Valley Police (TVP). 

A summary of the plan is available at www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/stopthespread, together with 
guidance for residents and local businesses on how to help stop the spread. The site also 

Page 69

https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1311
https://twitter.com/OUHospitals/status/1277605167689498627?s=20
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/stopthespread


2 
2020.07.07 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

includes a video message from Oxfordshire’s Director of Public Health Ansaf Azhar 
explaining why the easing of lockdown doesn’t mean we can go easy on the virus. Published 
last Friday, the video has already had over 8.7k views on Facebook. Oxfordshire system 
partners are publishing #stopthespread messages across social media channels, including 
Twitter, Facebook and Instagram. Please do share these messages with residents, 
businesses and community groups so that we can reach as many people as possible. 

Supporting the safe easing of lockdown in town centres 

In advance of the next major stage in the easing of national lockdown on 4 July, which saw 
the reopening of hospitality venues and visitor attractions, the city and district councils 
introduced a range of changes in town centres, including changes to road layouts, pavement 
stencils on narrow streets and alleyways, sanitiser stations, and social distancing signage. 
Hospitality venues are displaying posters in their entrances confirming that they have read 
and implemented Government’s “Five Steps to Safer Working Together” guidance. And 
many venues are carrying VisitEngland’s “We’re Good To Go” signage for UK tourism, which 
means businesses can demonstrate they are adhering to Government and public health 
guidance.  

Letter to businesses from Oxfordshire’s Public Health Director 

Oxfordshire’s Director of Public Health, Ansaf Azhar, has written to local businesses across 
Oxfordshire thanking them for adhering to the Government guidance and to remind them of 
the important role they continue to play in keeping staff and customers safe and helping 
businesses to remain open. His letter, sent in advance of the wider easing of lockdown, 
outlines some of the most relevant Government guidance for business, including information 
on access to testing and advice.  

Community Assessment, Liaison and Monitoring clinics (CALM) Phase 2: recovery 
and restoration 

Heath and care services in Oxfordshire, like those across the country, are now working 
carefully in the ‘recovery’ phase of the COVID-19 pandemic. Infection rates are dropping 
steadily and the numbers of deaths from the virus are also, thankfully, much lower. 

However, as we go on restoring routine services to ensure people get the treatment they 
need for all health conditions, we all have to be aware that the virus is still in our 
communities and we must continue to provide safe, expert care for COVID-19 patients. 

In Oxfordshire, those patients with COVID-19 and any new cases will continue to have 
access to dedicated COVID clinics, where they will be referred by a GP or NHS 111 if their 
symptoms need face-to-face assessment. Patients will be able to go to a clinic which is 
convenient to them. 

Each clinic site has a team of expert clinicians, working in infection-controlled conditions with 
personal protection equipment to ensure patient, staff and public safety. In addition, the 
COVID-19 home visiting service will continue to run for vulnerable people who are unable to 
travel to clinics. If the numbers of COVID-19 rise again, both services will be able to expand 
quickly to meet demand. 

GP practices 

Equally important is for everyone to know that GP practices and other primary care services 
are open for all other health care needs. Most practices are working differently now, offering 
telephone, online and video appointments in the first instance. For patients who need to be 
seen face to face, arrangements are made so they are seen safely. The message to all 
patients is that if they need health advice from a doctor or other clinician, they will get that 
advice and care in the safest way possible – but they must telephone their GP surgery first. 
Anyone turning up without calling will not be seen.   

Page 70

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/coronavirus-covid-19/controlling-local-coronavirus-outbreaks/stopping-spread


3 
2020.07.07 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

If patients receive an invitation for screening, immunisations or other tests, they are urged to 
make contact with their GP practice by phone or online as before to ensure they don’t miss 
these important appointments.  

Hospitals are now seeing more patients for routine appointments; they are also rebooking 
displaced outpatient appointments that were cancelled in order for the hospitals to respond 
to the COVID-19 pandemic and are accepting new referrals. This may take a longer than 
normal however if a GP believes symptoms are worrying, patients can be referred urgently 
and will be seen quickly and safely in secondary care.   

Happy Birthday NHS 

To mark the NHS 72 anniversary celebrations, Oxford Health created a special video with 
music sung by some of its young patients in a Stevie Wonder style Happy Birthday rendition. 
Staff from all over the trust, from chief nurse Marie Crofts and chief executive Nick 
Broughton to those working in PPE on wards, took part spending their break times to capture 
snippets; watch it here. OCCG wanted to use the NHS’ birthday as an opportunity to say 
thank you to all NHS staff, especially those in Primary Care, for all their hard work during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. OCCG Clinical Chair, Dr Kiren Collison can be seen in the short video 
here. OUH marked the anniversary with a remote performance from the Radcliffe Orchestra, 

which comprises healthcare professionals many of whom work on our front line, of 'Nimrod' 
from the Enigma Variations by Edward Elgar. The orchestra would normally play a live 
concert in June, so they have created this online performance to raise funds for Oxford 
Hospitals Charity and other charities. You can watch the video of 'Nimrod' on the OUH 
YouTube channel.  

‘Virtual’ public talks by Oxford’s COVID-19 research pioneers 

The scale and scope of COVID-19 related research activity taking place in Oxford 
demonstrates its status as a global centre for ground breaking research. The Oxford 
Biomedical Research Centre (BRC) is organising a series of ‘virtual’ public talks to shine a 
light on this remarkable work. Oxfordshire patients with COVID-19 were among the first to be 
recruited to a major new clinical trial to test potential drug treatments. The Randomised 
Evaluation of COVID-19 Therapy (RECOVERY) trial, led by researchers from the University 
of Oxford, is the largest of its kind in the world.  

Recently the researchers announced that dexamethasone (a steroid treatment which was 
among the drugs being tested) reduces death by up to one third in hospitalised patients with 
severe respiratory complications of COVID-19. Professor Martin Landray spoke about the 
RECOVERY trial during an online public talk on 30 June – the video of the talk is available 
on the Oxford BRC website. The next online public talk will be at 3pm on Tuesday 14 July 
when Professor Andrew Pollard will be talking about the Oxford Vaccine Trial – watch live on 
YouTube.  

BMA Council Chair praises research into COVID-19 staff testing at OUH 

A study at the OUH has revealed the different levels of risk faced by healthcare workers 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. In a major collaboration with the University of Oxford, 
almost 10,000 staff were tested both for presence of the virus responsible for COVID-19 and 
antibodies to the virus. This study, published last week, is the first to comprehensively 
investigate all staff groups across an institution. Based on the findings, an infection 
prevention and control plan has been implemented to limit transmission of the virus. 

The BMA Council Chair, Dr Chaand Nagpaul, responded positively to the study, saying it 
provides important information on the risks to different categories of staff. His remarks were 
reported by the Oxford Mail among others. 

 

 

Page 71

https://youtu.be/VxHJ8VdTYZM
https://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/your-health/thank-you-nhs-staff.htm
https://www.hospitalcharity.co.uk/
https://www.hospitalcharity.co.uk/
https://youtu.be/jZeg_PZiuiw
https://youtu.be/jZeg_PZiuiw
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1210
https://www.recoverytrial.net/
https://www.recoverytrial.net/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/videos/
https://oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk/videos/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ISIt0pC5Vio&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ISIt0pC5Vio&feature=youtu.be
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1312
https://www.oxfordmail.co.uk/news/18554348.bma-responds-oxford-hospital-coronavirus-bame-findings/


4 
2020.07.07 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

Changes to hospital visiting arrangements  

With effect from Monday 29 June OUH are allowing one visitor per patient, for one hour, 
once a day from Monday to Friday on their inpatient wards at the John Radcliffe Hospital, 
Churchill Hospital and Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre in Oxford and at the Horton General 
Hospital in Banbury. One-hour slots are booked in advance by staff on the wards. 

Some patients have different arrangements, such as women in labour, children, patients at 
the end of their life, and patients with learning difficulties – these arrangements have been in 
place throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Visiting is still not allowed on wards where patients with COVID-19 are being treated, and 
patients are expected to attend outpatient appointments unaccompanied unless there are 
exceptional circumstances. Patients attending Emergency Departments and Emergency 
Assessment Units are also expected to be unaccompanied unless there are exceptional 
circumstances. For more information including FAQs visit the OUH website.  

From July 1, Oxford Health has also started new visiting arrangements at six of its 
community hospitals. Family and carers of patients are being contacted directly by ward staff 
to book slots to make a visit. One visitor per day is allowed for one hour for each patient at 
Abingdon, Bicester, City, Didcot, Wallingford and Witney hospitals. Advice on infection 
control and masks for visitors has also been issued alongside some frequently asked 
questions (FAQs). More information is available here. 

Face masks and face coverings – a reminder 

Face coverings on public transport and for hospital staff, outpatients and visitors became 
compulsory across the country from 15 June. A face covering mainly protects others from 
infection rather than the wearer from infection from others. 

In line with new Government guidance for the NHS, all patients and visitors coming to OUH 
hospitals in Oxford and Banbury must now wear face coverings. Patients and visitors may 
wear a face mask if they choose, but a face covering is sufficient. All staff working in OUH 
hospitals – whether or not they work for OUH – must wear face masks. This is in line with 
the new Government guidance which came into effect on 15 June. 

These are additional measures to help keep everyone safe during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
in addition to staff, patients and visitors continuing to observe safe distancing and 
maintaining good hand hygiene. More information about the requirement for patients and 
visitors to wear face coverings is available on the OUH website. 

Face masks – making sure they are safe and legal 
Traders in Oxfordshire are being warned by Oxfordshire County Council’s Trading Standards 
not to sell low-tech face coverings as Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) or make claims 
they provide protection against COVID-19. Trading Standards legislation controls the sale of 
these products and requires producers and sellers to meet certain requirements.  

Anyone involved in making or selling face coverings should refer to the Trading Standards: 
face coverings guidance to ensure they are compliant with the law. Follow-up advice can be 
requested by contacting Oxfordshire Trading Standards on 01865 895999 (Option 2) or 
email Trading.Standards@Oxfordshire.gov.uk. Oxfordshire Trading Standards is regularly 
monitoring online sites such as Facebook Marketplace and will be actively engaging with 
sellers to ensure any face coverings are safe and legal.  

Letters to a Little One 

Oxford Health’s Chief Nurse Marie Crofts is writing to the children, grandchildren, nephews 
and nieces of members of staff to thank them for supporting the grown-ups coming to work 
or working from home during the pandemic. Personalised letters are being sent directly to 
around 600 children, accompanied by a small gift. The idea for the letter came from 

Page 72

https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1310
https://www.oxfordhealth.nhs.uk/news/booked-patient-visiting-times-start-at-our-community-hospitals/
https://www.ouh.nhs.uk/news/article.aspx?id=1298
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/coronavirus/guidance_for_producers_of_face_coverings.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/coronavirus/guidance_for_producers_of_face_coverings.pdf
mailto:Trading.Standards@Oxfordshire.gov.uk


5 
2020.07.07 Oxfordshire COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing 

Community Services Director, Emma Leaver, who is committed to supporting staff and their 
families.  

Creating with Care programme 

Oxford Health’s ‘Creating with Care’ programme has been bringing entertainment and 
creative activities to the county’s community hospitals with arts and music. Patients and staff 
at the Wallingford Community Hospital were treated to a socially distanced summer concert 
with strawberries and cream. Similar concerts are planned for Witney and Abingdon 
hospitals, too. 

Frequency and further information: 

For the time being we will be sharing an update fortnightly; this may change as we review 
communications for the COVID-19 response and recovery phase of the pandemic. 

Please email occg.media-team@nhs.net with any queries and we will endeavour to get back 
to you. 

Page 73

https://www.oxfordhealth.nhs.uk/news/swing-song-strawberries-and-cream-thats-what-a-summer-is-made-of/
mailto:occg.media-team@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



 

25 August 2020 1 

 

 

 

Table of contents 

Introducing Restart, Recover, Renew................................................................... 2 

Economy ........................................................................................................... 3 

Place, Transport, Infrastructure ........................................................................... 3 

Health, Wellbeing, Social Care ............................................................................. 4 

Children, Education, Families .............................................................................. 5 

Community Resilience ......................................................................................... 6 

Outbreak Management ....................................................................................... 7 

Organisational Recovery ..................................................................................... 8 

 

 

 

 

25 August 2020 

Oxfordshire health and local 

authority partners are 

working together to help the 

county restart, recover and 

renew after COVID-19.  

Page 75



4

25 August 2020 2 

Introducing Restart, Recover, Renew 

Restart, Recover, Renew is an ambitious 

Oxfordshire system-wide approach to recovery, 

which places the health, social and economic 

wellbeing of Oxfordshire residents at its heart. It 

considers the interdependencies between 

socio-economic factors, health outcomes, the 

economy, environmental matters and 

communities, and seeks to identify innovative 

joint solutions to shared challenges.  

The devastating impact of COVID-19 has 

presented a challenge to our communities and 

across our services which we have never seen 

in our lifetime. Staff, volunteers and 

communities across Oxfordshire have risen to 

that challenge with remarkable dedication and 

flexibility, going the extra mile on a daily basis 

to support and protect the most vulnerable 

people in our society.  

But what the crisis has shown with particular 

clarity is our collective strength when we work 

in partnership across the Oxfordshire system 

and the value we add when we work flexibly 

across health, local government, business, and 

the voluntary and community sector. This is 

especially the case when we join up 

preventative and capacity-building services with 

demand-led acute services to reduce the 

demand on those acute services and, more 

importantly, to improve outcomes for 

Oxfordshire residents. 

Restart, Recover, Renew seeks to build on this 

dynamic partnership working and apply it to the 

significant challenges that face us as a county 

as we embark on the road to recovery. It covers 

three planning horizons – the short, medium 

and longer term, which will be informed by a 

policy and evidence-led response.  

i) Restarting services temporarily 
paused during the pandemic, 
managing the subsequent surge in 
demand, and preparing for the 
possibility of a second peak that 
could lead to a further pause. 

ii) Redesigning service delivery 
methods to reflect current needs, 
such as facilitating remote access 
where this has improved experience; 
embedding positive societal changes 
during lockdown, such as a decrease 
in smoking and an increase in cycling 
and walking; and helping drive local 
economic recovery. 

iii) Transforming our services and 
service delivery to support the long-
term future of the county and its 
people, ensuring that we learn the 
lessons from our collective 
experience of COVID-19 to enhance 
community and economic resilience.    

We have established a thematic structure to 

ensure there is clear leadership and 

coordination of our recovery work, and the 

outputs of these thematic cells are brought 

together in the weekly Oxfordshire Whole 

System Recovery Group. The six themes are: i) 

Economy; ii) Place, Transport, Infrastructure; iii) 

Health, Wellbeing and Social Care; iv) Children, 

Education and Families; v) Community 

Resilience; vi) Organisational Recovery. 

This issue of the relaunched stakeholder 

briefing will concentrate on providing an update 

on the approach to all of the above themes. In 

the future we intend to do a monthly briefing 

covering different aspects of our work.  

 

Page 76



4

25 August 2020 3 

Economy

 

 
 

It has to be recognised that COVID-19 is not 

only a serious health emergency but also an 

economic one; the detrimental impact of the 

pandemic on the global, UK and Oxfordshire 

economy should not be underestimated. The 

economic and social disruption will endure long 

after the health emergency is manageable. It is 

believed that it could take five to 10 years (even 

a generation) to fully recover. A thriving local 

economy will underpin renewal, provide 

opportunities for local people and ensure 

Oxfordshire retains its status as a world class 

economic force. 

Under the former response structure, the focus 

of the Silver Business Community Support Cell 

was to assess the impact of the pandemic on 

businesses and to address immediate issues.  

This has been achieved through working 

collaboratively with representatives from 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 

Strategy (BEIS), Department for Work and 

Pensions (DWP) and Oxfordshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP); and the 

delivery of measures announced by the 

Government.  

These measures included grant schemes 

enabling Oxfordshire district and city councils to 

support businesses in their local communities.  

For example, Cherwell District Council has 

awarded more than £26.3m in grants to 2,000+ 

businesses and other organisations, protecting 

the livelihood of many businesses and their 

employees.  

The newly formed Economic Recovery Group 

(ERG) will work with partners (such as the 

OxLEP Task Group, the Health Protection 

Board and the other themed recovery groups 

outlined in this briefing) and sector 

representatives to support communities and 

local businesses in the wider Oxfordshire 

economy to ensure that the recovery happens 

as soon as possible.

 

Place, Transport, Infrastructure 

COVID-19 has caused significant impact to 

places, transport and infrastructure services. 

These have included reduced travel as people 

work from home more and schools have only 

been partially open, restrictions on the use of 

public transport, and the need to enable more 

active modes of travel. Town centres, markets, 

playgrounds and household waste recycling 

centres have had to be managed differently to 

maintain social distancing. 

As restrictions are gradually lifting and more 

journeys become permitted, the ‘Place, 

Transport and Infrastructure’ workstream is 

focussing on enabling people to travel safely. In 

 

 

Page 77



 

 

the longer term, we want to find ways to hold on 

to the ‘gains’ experienced during COVID-19, 

such as reduced congestion and carbon 

emissions, consistent with our ambitions for 

climate change and transport connectivity, 

while enabling economic recovery. In both the 

short and long term, we need to ensure that 

any measures we take support action to tackle 

inequalities in Oxfordshire. 

Some of our key achievements to date have 

included: 

 The safe reopening of all seven 
household waste recycling centres. 

 Working with colleagues in Children, 
Education and Families to support 
schools as they opened to more pupils. 
Measures were implemented to enable 
home-to-school transport to be 
undertaken safely, and to help schools 
manage drop off and pick up times. 

 Being half way through the 
implementation of a £600k programme 
of ‘Active Travel’ measures, designed to 
support a shift to walking and cycling 
across the county. A bid to the 
Department for Transport for a possible 
further £2.38m of funding for this work 
has also been submitted. 

  

Health, Wellbeing, Social Care

 

The refocussing of resources to the COVID-19 

response over the last four months has affected 

the delivery of health and social care. There is 

a backlog of planned care which was paused 

and routine referrals temporarily stopped.  

The pandemic has also affected people who 

may have delayed the presentation of their 

illness / medical problem and there are 

increased waiting times; there are increasing 

mental health issues and an exacerbation of 

existing health inequalities.  

All of this, coupled with the mental and physical 

wellbeing of the health and care workforce, 

needs to be addressed through the recovery 

programme. 

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust (OUH) and Oxford Health NHS 

Foundation Trust (Oxford Health) have already 

been working hard to re-open services for 

routine referrals. In doing this, patient safety is 

at the forefront of plans and each service area 

is reviewing the practicalities of reopening in 

view of constraints such as the need to social 

distance, availability of workforce and PPE. 

Both Trusts are continuing to increase the 

availability of video consultations and remote 

monitoring of patients wherever possible.  

Work continues to reassure people that all 

hospitals and GP surgeries have measures in 

place to keep them safe as services resume. 

People with COVID-19, be it in hospital or in 

GP surgeries, are treated in separate, 

dedicated areas, so the right infection control 

measures are in place to protect them, other 

patients and staff. 

Part of this programme also looks at the 

learning from our experiences so far during the 

pandemic; looking at what services were 

introduced that can continue; the further 

development of IT to support the delivery of 

health and care services and to ensure we can 

flex our response up and down at short notice 

depending on how the pandemic progresses.   

 

Page 78



4

25 August 2020 5 

Children, Education, Families 

Throughout lockdown all schools remained 
open to children of ‘critical workers’ and those 
children deemed vulnerable; only 5% of schools 
closed due to staffing shortages; mostly for less 
than two days. Where a school was closed for a 
brief period, all families requesting a place for 
their child in another school were placed by the 
newly formed ‘School Places Brokering 
Service’.  

Early Years and Childcare Provision in 
Oxfordshire is extremely important to many 
Oxfordshire families. The Oxfordshire Family 
Information Service (FIS) holds a directory of 
provision which parents can use to search for 
childcare. They also offer a brokerage service 
for anyone experiencing difficulties in finding 
childcare to meet their needs. 

Oxfordshire County Council provided Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE) to schools in May 
to aid reopening as PPE was in short supply 
and in some cases of variable quality. The 
council also provided a grant to managers of 
preschools, day nurseries and to all 
childminders. 

While closed to the majority of children in 

Oxfordshire, schools have provided structure 

for home schooling via the internet or through 

school learning packages sent home. Some 

schools have moved their learning from the 

classroom to children’s homes with resources 

being available to all, both online and as paper 

copies to ensure no child was disadvantaged. 

The council made a successful application to 

the Department for Education (DfE) to a 

scheme for supporting children and young 

people who need a laptop to support learning. 

Digital devices, internet access and support to 

provide remote education and access to 

children in social care and disadvantaged Year 

10 children have been available.     

Support to schools was given in the form of 

public health advice, practical written advice 

through documents and frameworks, frequently 

asked questions sheets. All these were well 

received by school leaders, including 

governors. The County Health and Safety team 

offered a review of risk assessments. Weekly 

meetings were held by officers with the 

Headteacher Chairs of the 26 Primary 

Partnerships with two-way feedback between 

that group and DfE officials, again through 

separate weekly meetings.   

Throughout the pandemic Children’s Social 

Care (CSC), Safeguarding, Looked After, 

Leaving Care and Early Help services have 

been fully operational supporting and 

safeguarding our most vulnerable children and 

families. At the very beginning of lockdown, 

CSC set up provision for children and families 

who were in need, but not shielding, to access 

food parcels, practical help from voluntary 

groups, and emotional support from Early Help 

services. These were set up in co-operation 

with community hubs but planned so that hubs 

could concentrate on shielded people, while 

families’ needs were met in tandem. 

During the pandemic CSC has been conducting 

a joint piece of work with the housing 

department of Cherwell District Council: the 

Family Safeguarding Model Plus pilot focusses 

on six families which have both housing and 

 

 

Page 79



4

25 August 2020 6 

social care concerns and facilitates joint 

working with social care and housing 

colleagues on tailored support agreed by each 

family. It is hoped that this partnership work will 

expand to the rest of the county, building on the 

lessons learnt from the pilot with Cherwell. 

It has been an important time to be conducting 

the pilot as the ban on housing evictions (due to 

the COVID-19 restrictions on movement) has 

been extended to 23 August 2020. This allows 

an opportunity to support families who might 

otherwise face eviction from their home when 

the ban is lifted. 

 

Community Resilience   

 

Throughout the crisis, this workstream has 

brought together councils, Oxfordshire Clinical 

Commissioning Clinical Group (OCCG) and 

local support organisations to provide support 

and assistance in the community.  

This has helped to ensure the health and 

wellbeing of individuals, reduce pressure on 

statutory services and, critically, enable 

compliance with lock-down guidance and so 

reduce transmission, particularly to the our 

most vulnerable people.  

While there is less pressure on this activity area 

as lock-down has been reduced, planning is 

underway for how support would operate in 

local outbreaks or wider lock-down. Community 

Resilience also provides a point of coordination 

for intelligence on community engagement, 

particularly engaging vulnerable people and 

groups and tackling inequalities, including the 

new inequality driven by pressures on services 

and the economy 

In recent weeks, the Community Resilience 

workstream has been focussing on preparing 

for the pausing of the Shielding Programme 

which has been protecting the most clinically 

vulnerable. 

 All shielding residents who agreed to on-going 

contact have been being contacted by their 

local council to ensure their welfare and that 

they are able to access food and essential 

supplies. Plans for continuing support, where 

required, are in place. Specific services – 

including health, housing providers, adults and 

children’s social care – are also working with 

people directly where required to manage the 

transition from shielding.  

As the focus moves to recovery and renewal, 

we will work together to support the 

development of community resilience for the 

future, building on the capacity demonstrated 

during the COVID-19 crisis and the new 

networks and relationships that have formed.  

As a practical example of this activity, during 

lock-down, we supported the Good Food 

Oxford (GFO) network to expand its mapping of 

community food providers to the whole county. 

Support includes funding from Public Health 

and the attachment of a member of the County 

Council’s community engagement team to GFO 

to help build intelligence on the capacity and 

needs of pre-existing and newly emerged food 

banks, community larders, kitchens and fridges.  

In partnership with the city and district councils, 

community food forums have now been 

established in all areas to promote dialogue 

and coordination between community food 

providers and with food providers and statutory 

services. 

  Page 80



4

25 August 2020 7 

Outbreak Management 

 

As national lockdown has gradually eased, 

local plans have been developed by local 

authorities in partnership with the NHS and 

Public Health England to reduce the spread of 

infection and manage local outbreaks.  

Oxfordshire’s local outbreak control plan is 

designed to help people resume a way of life 

during COVID-19 that is safe, protects our 

health and care systems, and supports our 

local economy. 

 It has been developed by Oxfordshire County 

Council’s Public Health team, working with 

colleagues from the city and district councils, 

Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust (Oxford 

Health), Oxford University Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust (OUH), Oxfordshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group (OCCG), Public Health 

England (PHE) and Thames Valley Police 

(TVP).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The plan is supported by a public-facing 

communications campaign - #stopthespread – 

to encourage Oxfordshire residents to remain 

vigilant and continue to take protective 

measures to stop the spread of the virus and 

protect themselves and others.  

This broad campaign has been supplemented 

by targeted communications and engagement 

activity. For example, Oxfordshire system 

partners worked closely with local faith and 

community leaders to encourage communities 

to celebrate Eid safely, with posters displayed 

at mosques across Oxfordshire, messages on 

social media which were shared by community 

leaders, and a Celebrate Eid Safely video, 

which included messages from 12 Muslim 

community leaders in different languages.  

And rises in coronavirus cases in Oxford city in 

late July and late August have been addressed 

by a system-wide response, including text 

messages sent out by GP practices to local 

residents; text alerts by Thames Valley Police 

to local residents; leaflets distributed to 

households, with translations in Arabic, Urdu 

and Bengali; social media messages which 

have been shared by all system partners; 

posters, outdoor and digital advertising; and 

media interviews with Oxfordshire’s Director of 

Public Health Ansaf Azhar. 

 

Page 81



4

25 August 2020 8 

 

Organisational Recovery 

 

 

Across the system all partners are in the midst 

of various re-start activities. Making changes to 

ensure COVID-19 safe work places and 

spaces, continued remote working, and 

developing solutions as varied as one way 

systems, floor markings and protective 

equipment and hygiene practices. 

Our short term focus is the safe re-start of 

suspended activities and continuation of the 

practices we have put in place over the last 

months to deliver key frontline services in our 

various work settings.  

 

 

 

 

Our short term focus is the safe re-start of 

suspended activities and continuation of the 

practices we have put in place over the last 

months to deliver key frontline services in our 

various work settings.  

In the longer term each organisation will be 

considering how the impact of COVID-19 

compliant workspaces will affect our use of 

property assets, our agile and remote working 

requirements and the potential of increased 

digital service delivery.  

There is opportunity across the system to learn 

from one another and consider our collective 

use of assets and even investment in 

technology.  

But it is also important to recognise that each 

organisation will have its own service delivery, 

geographic and accessibility constraints, 

requirements and opportunities and that one 

size may not fit all 

 

 

 

 

 

And Finally… 

 

For the time being we will be sharing an update 

fortnightly; this may change as we review 

communications for the COVID-19 response 

and recovery phase of the pandemic. 

 

Please email occg.media-team@nhs.net with 

any queries and we will endeavour to get back 

to you. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 82

mailto:occg.media-team@nhs.net


 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
www.bobstp.org.uk 
 

1 

 
  3 July 2020 

 

Interim Deputy ICS Lead/Director of CCG Transformation Joins the Health 
and Care System  
  
The senior leadership team of the ICS and three CCGs in Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire and Berkshire West 
(BOB) will be joined on 6 July by Matthew Tait. 
 
He will work on the BOB patch on a temporary basis, on secondment from NHS England/Improvement, where 
he is the South East Regional ICS Development Director. Matthew’s role will be Deputy ICS Lead/Director of CCG 
Transformation (interim).  
 
His role will cover four key elements: 
 

 Taking forward proposals for a joint single management team across the three CCGs 

 Developing a commissioning model in the light of the ambitions of the Long Term Plan and the NHS 

England/Improvement policy of “system by default” 

 Supporting the development of the ICS - in the first instance, setting up an effective and efficient ICS 

secretariat and then looking to a broader agreement across the system on how to approach and 

resource the change necessary to live within our means.  

 Senior leadership support - Matthew will deputise for James Kent when required and will bridge any 

gaps in the senior management team whilst it is being established  

Matthew brings a wealth of health and care experience to the health and care system. Before joining NHS 
England/Improvement, Matthew was the joint Accountable Officer across the three Surrey Heartlands CCGs, 
overseeing their merger to a single CCG in April.  Colleagues who have worked locally for a number of years will 
also know Matthew from his time as Area Director for NHS England Thames Valley and the PCT Cluster CEO for 
Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire. 
 
Speaking of his forthcoming secondment, Matthew praised the progress made to date across the ICS; “The 
strong foundations you’ve built have been evident in how partners have come together to meet the challenges 
of Covid-19. 
 
 I am very much looking forward to working with colleagues across the health and care system in the coming 
weeks and months, to share my learning and experience from Surrey Heartlands and to learn from you.”       
 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Update for HOSC stakeholders  

 

Windrush branch surgery – Bradley Arcade 

OCCG has recently considered an application by Windrush Surgery to close their 

branch surgery at Bradley Arcade.  Concern had been previously raised that Bradley 

Arcade was located in Ruscote ward, parts of which are among the more deprived 

wards in the country, falling into the 20% most disadvantaged small areas nationally. 

In order to consider the application, the CCG followed the decision tree developed by 

a small stakeholder group in September 2018.  It considered the request from the 

practice; the impact on the Ruscote ward and the feedback from patient 

engagement. 

GP practices in Banbury and elsewhere have struggled with recruiting sufficient GPs 

for some years. Windrush Surgery has taken successful and innovative approaches 

to making the best use of a wider range of clinical staff – for example pioneering use 

of paramedics to provide primary care; this includes assessing, triaging and advising 

patients.   

The pressure on GP practices running branch surgeries has increased in recent 

years, with fewer GPs to work in them and fewer resources to pay for them.  

Operating on two sites is particularly challenging with limited GP staffing; it also 

stretches other staff resources and tends to be more costly due to the commitment of 

maintaining an additional building. 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic and following national guidance, Windrush 

Surgery has changed the way it cares for patients.  This has included a telephone 

triage-first approach and maximising use of telephone, video and online 

consultations.  This is in line with the way other GP practices are operating across 

Oxfordshire and the rest of the country.  

In recent years, Bradley Arcade branch surgery has only offered appointments four 

mornings per week, while the main surgery offers a full Monday to Friday service.  

Some services were not possible at the branch such as ECGs and spirometry.  A 

recent survey by the practice showed that there was no pattern to those attending 

the branch surgery when compared to the main surgery and did not show that those 

living nearer Bradley Arcade were more inclined to attend the local site.  Indeed 

when looking at the population of Ruscote Ward, only 21% of patients are registered 

at Windrush Surgery, the remainder at the other 3 Banbury practices. 

The practice requested feedback from its patients on the possible closure of the 

branch site through a text message to the majority of their registered list.  No direct 

responses were received from patients but there was some interest in the local 

media and amongst District Councillors.  Recognising the unprecedented times and 

the inability to hold public meetings to debate the issues, an advert was placed in the 

Page 85



Banbury Guardian for two weeks requesting feedback from patients registered at the 

practice.  Two responses were received with concerns about disability access at the 

main surgery.  These concerns have been followed up. The practice has confirmed 

that there are two disability bays directly in front of the surgery, an automatic front 

door and also the option of a home visit if deemed appropriate.   

The CCG considered all of the above and debated the health inequalities in Banbury 

and the Ruscote ward.  There was clear recognition that more support is needed for 

health and wellbeing in Ruscote ward.  The requested branch closure fulfilled the 

requirements and process placed on practices and does not represent significant 

service change.  The main Windrush Surgery is a reasonable alternative, is 

accessible and the requested branch closure supports the sustainability of the 

practice overall.  OCCG approved the closure of the Bradley Arcade branch as 

requested by Windrush Surgery. 

 

Page 86



 

 

Briefing to HOSC Chair  

Reopening Outpatients services  

HOSC will be aware that before the COVID19 pandemic Oxfordshire had challenges on waiting times 
for some key outpatient and surgery areas.  The COVID19 pandemic has resulted in a pause in non-
urgent activity and then some real challenges in returning to prior service levels. In reopening 
services to routine care, patient safety is at the forefront of plans and each service area is reviewing 
the practicalities of reopening in view of constraints such as the need to social distance, availability 
of workforce, PPE and in some cases drugs and medicines. Activity levels are most challenged where 
these need to be under taken in a face to face way. There has been considerable progress in using 
virtual consultations and telephone consultation but this still leaves lower levels of service than we 
would want to offer to patients.  We have a growing risk in relation to the numbers of patients 
waiting over 52 weeks to complete their treatment.  Whilst this will not include any urgent or cancer 
condition this is clearly not good for patients.   
 
Most specialties are opening for new GP referrals but for some areas we are looking at local review 
of the outpatient request (triage) and then potentially needing to ask patients to use providers with 
lower waits out of county or in the independent sector. This will be true for most of Gynaecology 
and for hips in Orthopaedics.  Some specialties mean a patient is even more likely to present risk of 
infection as they require an aerosol generating procedure.  These higher risk specialties will take 
longer for us to find alternate solutions and to return to full opening.   In some  areas, and supported 
by a nationally contracted approach, we are looking for collaborative solutions with independent 
providers to bring in additional capacity, so for example work has been done at the Cherwell 
Hospitals (Ramsay Horton),  the Manor Hospital  and The New Foscote. There will be a combination 
of bringing more services in and where essential asking patients to travel to differing locations to get 
swifter care. We continue to work on solutions and will update HOSC at the next meeting. 
 
There are very extensive clinical harm review processes in place to review patients experiencing 
longer waits and the CCG and OUHFT are developing webinars and support to GPs to assist in 
managing patients optimally in the right setting.  
 
Minor Injury and First Aid Units 
 
Bicester FAU – returned to full opening on Monday 25.05.20. 
MIUs (Abingdon, Henley, Witney) – returned to full opening on Monday 18.05.20. 
Chipping Norton First Aid Unit   – suspension remains in place due to staffing and safety issues. We 
are aiming to reopen from the middle of August 
Wallingford FAU – Suspension remains in place due to staffing and safety issues. 
 
The COVID recovery process has changed the way people access these services in their reopened 
mode. To provide a COVID19 safe environment and minimise waits, patients are encouraged to ring 
111 to obtain a specific appointment slot. 
Patients who turn up without an appointment are triaged outside and asked to wait in their vehicles 
until it is time to be seen. Therefore we are working to a, phone before you go model to minimise 
waiting and offer appointment slots and moving away from a walk-in style service. 
 
  

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Bruno Holthof 
Chief Executive Officer 
Oxford University Hospitals Foundation Trust 
bruno.holthof@ouh.nhs.uk  
 
cc (for info): Dr James Kent, Single Accountable Officer,  
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
jameskent99@nhs.net  
 
Dear Dr Holthof, 
 
Re: Maternity patient partners 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
encourage Oxford University Hospitals (OUH) Foundation Trust to allow the attendance of 
maternity patient partners at all scans, appointments and post-partum stays going forward.  
 
Whilst the committee understands and welcomes that OUH is currently allowing partners 
to be present for birth under COVID-19 restrictions, I wish to encourage the Trust to 
reconsider the requirement for partners to leave shortly afterwards. I understand that 
different approaches have been taken to the issue of maternity patient partner attendance 
across the country and would be delighted if Oxfordshire’s patients and partners were 
facilitated to attend together throughout their maternity journey with you. 
 
Given that the nation is no longer in full lock-down and despite the rule of six coming in to 
force today, it is relatively easy to socialise, with significant life events such as weddings 
able to proceed with up to 30 guests. I am concerned about the mental well-being aspects 
of expectant and new Mothers having to be alone at another, very significant life event that 
is becoming a parent. I am particularly concerned when complications or adverse events 
occur which create additional stress.  
 
I look forward to hearing the OUH position on this issue.  
 
Yours Sincerely 

 
 
Cllr Arash Fatemian  
Chairman Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee   
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 
 
Contact: Sam Shepherd, Policy Team 
Leader 
Direct Line: 07789 088173 
Email: 
samantha.shepherd@oxfordshire.gov
.uk  
 

 
 

Date: 14 September 2020 

Page 89

mailto:bruno.holthof@ouh.nhs.uk
mailto:jameskent99@nhs.net
mailto:samantha.shepherd@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:samantha.shepherd@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 
 

2 
 

 

Page 90


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	JHO_SEP2420R03 - Actions_25th June 2020

	5 Forward Plan
	7 System-wide update on the COVID-19 response and recovery
	9 COVID-19 research
	10 Routine referrals
	13 Healthwatch Report
	14 Chairman’s Report
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 1- OX12 recommendations letter_23-07-2020
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 2- 2020.08.27 Councillor Arash Fatemian re OX12
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 3a- 2020.06.23 Oxon COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing Final
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 3b- 2020.07.07 Oxon COVID-19 Stakeholder Briefing Final
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 3c- 2020.08.25 Oxon System Stakeholder Briefing
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 4- BOB ICS Bulletin July
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 5- 200723 Update for HOSC stakeholders - Bradley arcade
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 6- 2020.07.24 HOSC briefing outpatients and MIU.FAUs
	JHO_SEP2420R13 - Chair rep_Appx 7- Letter to OUH_maternity patient appt_Sept 2020_FINAL


